
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION MEETING 
 
 

July 23, 2015 
10:30 a.m. 

Hynes Convention Center 
900 Boylston Street, Room 103  

Boston, MA 
 
 





http://www.massgaming.com/
mailto:regs@sec.state.ma.us
mailto:melissa.andrade@state.ma.us


 

Meeting Minutes 

  

 

Date/Time: July 9, 2015 – 10:30 a.m. 

Place:  Boston Convention and Exhibition Center 
 415 Summer Street, Room 107B  
 Boston, Massachusetts 
  
Present:  Chairman Stephen P. Crosby  

Commissioner Gayle Cameron  
Commissioner James F. McHugh  
Commissioner Bruce W. Stebbins 
Commissioner Enrique Zuniga 

 
 
 
 
 
Call to Order  
See transcript page 2 
 
10:31 a.m.     Chairman Crosby called to order the 157th Commission Meeting. 
 
Approval of Minutes 
See transcript pages 2-5 
 
10:34 a.m. Commissioner McHugh moved for the approval of the June 25, 2015 

minutes with reservation of power to change mechanical and 
typographical errors and to include the following amendments raised by 
Commissioners Zuniga and Stebbins:  Commissioners Zuniga - to 
include his inquiry as to the status of submission of required documents 
by KG Urban, and Commissioner Stebbins - to note that proposals 
pertaining to the definition and status of Veterans are tabled pending 
further exploration by staff and the Commission.  Motion seconded by 
Commissioner Cameron.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 
Administrative Update 
See transcript pages 5-23 
 
10:37 a.m. Caesar Ibarra, of Eide Bailly, provided an outline on the three phases of 

auditing which included:  internal control/audit program drafting, 
licensee site audits, and knowledge transfer to MGC staff.   

Time entries are linked to 
corresponding section in                  

Commission meeting video 

https://youtu.be/DsWCDUsOBvI
https://youtu.be/DsWCDUsOBvI?t=14
https://youtu.be/DsWCDUsOBvI?t=277


 

10:54 a.m. Executive Director Rick Day provided an update on the status of 
temporary key gaming licenses issued by the Investigations and 
Enforcement Bureau for employees at Plainridge Park Casino.   

 
10:55 a.m. Executive Director Day provided an update on the status of the 

suitability investigation for KG Urban.  Executive Director Day noted 
that KG Urban is in substantial compliance with the requested 
documentation by the Investigations and Enforcement Bureau. 

 
Ombudsman 
See transcript pages 23-78 
 
10:56 a.m.  Ombudsman John Ziemba provided an estimated schedule for key dates 

in the Region C RFA-2 licensing process and discussed plan to notify 
potentially affected communities of the dates and timelines. 

 
11:02 a.m. Ombudsman Ziemba and MGC consultant Jennifer Pinck presented an 

overview of the process for review of MGM Springfield’s request to 
amend construction schedule. 

 
11:13 a.m. Ombudsman Ziemba provided an update on progress towards 

completion of the Massachusetts Historical Commission’s review of the 
MGM Springfield project.   

 
11:16 a.m. Ombudsman Ziemba asked the Commission to allocate $350,000 for the 

City of Springfield’s request for Community Mitigation Funds for 
contributions to a Springfield preservation trust fund and asked 
Executive Director Day and staff to begin drafting of a Memorandum of 
Understanding reflecting this contribution. 

 
11:26 a.m. Commissioner Zuniga moved that the Commission fund out of the 

Community Mitigation Fund, make a commitment of funding the 
Springfield Historical Preservation Trust outlined in the packet and 
discussed, and authorize MGC staff to memorialize that funding in a 
memorandum of agreement with the other parties and bring back to the 
Commission for final approval.  Motion seconded by Commissioner 
Stebbins.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 
11:27 a.m. Ombudsman Ziemba provided recommendations on applications from 

communities and entities for monies from the 2015 Community 
Mitigation Fund and Reserve Fund. 

 
11:56 a.m. Commissioner Zuniga moved that the Commission agree to the 

recommendations by Ombudsman Ziemba on the community mitigation 
requests submitted by Medford, Revere, Somerville, Springfield and 
West Springfield in the manner contained in the packet.   

 Motion seconded by Commissioner Stebbins.  Motion passed 
unanimously. 

 
12:00 p.m. The Commission took a short recess. 

https://youtu.be/DsWCDUsOBvI?t=1378
https://youtu.be/DsWCDUsOBvI?t=1416
https://youtu.be/DsWCDUsOBvI?t=1506
https://youtu.be/DsWCDUsOBvI?t=1734
https://youtu.be/DsWCDUsOBvI?t=2484
https://youtu.be/DsWCDUsOBvI?t=2574
https://youtu.be/DsWCDUsOBvI?t=3322
https://youtu.be/DsWCDUsOBvI?t=3379
https://youtu.be/DsWCDUsOBvI?t=5113
https://youtu.be/DsWCDUsOBvI?t=5386


 

12:16 p.m. The meeting resumed. 
 
Legal Division 
See transcript pages 78-86 
 
12:16 p.m. General Counsel Catherine Blue provided an update on the status of 

MGM Springfield Section 61 findings.  
 
12:20 p.m. General Counsel Blue presented on the Amended Small Business Impact 

Statements for amendments to 205 CMR 134.00 and 205 CMR 102.00. 
 
12:24 p.m. Commissioner Stebbins moved that the Commission approve the 

Amended Small Business Impact Statements for 205 CMR 134.00 and 
205 CMR 102.00, and to authorize the Legal Division to conduct the 
necessary steps to promulgate final regulations.   Motion seconded by 
Commissioner Cameron.   Motion passed unanimously. 

 
Other Business Not Reasonably Anticipated 
See transcript pages 86-87 
 
12:25 p.m.  Having no further business, a motion to adjourn was made by 

Commissioner Cameron.  Motion seconded by Commissioner Zuniga.   
Motion passed unanimously.   

 
List of Documents and Other Items Used 

 
1. Massachusetts Gaming Commission, Notice of Meeting and Agenda, dated July 

9, 2015 
2. Massachusetts Gaming Commission, Draft Meeting Minutes, dated June 25, 

2015 
3. Eide Bailly Presentation – Massachusetts Gaming Commission Executive 

Briefing Progress Update – Internal Control Consulting, date July 2015 
4. Massachusetts Gaming Commission Memorandum, Temporary Key Gaming 

employee Licenses Issued, Dated July 9, 2015 
5. Massachusetts Gaming Commission, Estimated Region C Category 1 Timeline, 

dated July 6, 2015 
6. Massachusetts Gaming Commission Memorandum, 2015 Community 

Mitigation Fund Specific Impacts Requests and West Springfield Community 
Mitigation Reserve Fund Request with attachments, dated July 8, 2015 

7. MGM Springfield Presentation on Massachusetts Historical Commission with 
attachments, dated June 30, 2015 

8. Amended Small Business Impact Statements for 205 CMR 102 and 205 CMR 
134 

9. Letter from Jay Michelman to the Massachusetts Gaming Commission, dated 
June 26, 2015 regarding 205 CMR 102, Draft Regulation Comment 

10. Letter from Affiliated Chambers of Commerce of Greater Springfield to John 
Ziemba, dated July 8, 2015 regarding support for MGM Springfield extension 

11. Letter from Mary Kay Wydra, Greater Springfield Convention and Visitors 
Bureau, to John Ziemba, dated July 8, 2015 regarding support for MGM 
Springfield extension 

https://youtu.be/DsWCDUsOBvI?t=5394
https://youtu.be/DsWCDUsOBvI?t=5405
https://youtu.be/DsWCDUsOBvI?t=5664
https://youtu.be/DsWCDUsOBvI?t=5876


 

12. Letter from White Lion Brewing to John Ziemba, dated July 7, 2015 regarding 
support for MGM Springfield extension 

 
 

      
     /s/ Catherine Blue  

      Catherine Blue, Assistant Secretary 



 

 

 

 
DATE:    July 21, 2015 

TO:  Chairman Stephen Crosby 
Commissioner Gayle Cameron 
Commissioner James McHugh 
Commissioner Bruce Stebbins 
Commissioner Enrique Zuniga 
 

FROM:  Alex Lightbown, Acting Director of Racing 
 Catherine Blue, General Counsel 
 
CC:         Rick Day, Executive Director 

 
RE:         Suffolk Downs – August 8th, September 5th and October 3rd, 2015 

   

Suffolk Downs has applied to the Massachusetts Gaming Commission (MGC) for three days of racing 
festivals: August 8, September 5, and October 3.   If granted the license, Suffolk will enter into a 
consulting agreement with New England Horsemen’s Agricultural and Racing Cooperative (NEHARC) to 
manage the racing.   

Lou Raffetto is the sole employee of NEHARC.   In Mr. Raffetto’s June 16th letter to the MGC, he states, 
“it is the New England HBPA, through the New England Horsemen’s Agricultural and Racing Corporation 
(NEHARC) that will conduct racing operations for the festival.  In a June 15th letter to the MGC from 
HBPA President Anthony Spadea, Mr. Spadea states, “…the abbreviated meet…will demonstrate that the 
NEHBPA horsemen under the guidance of General Manager Louis Raffetto are very capable of 
conducting a race meet”.   

The HBPA and Mr. Raffetto have now indicated that Mr. Raffetto alone will be conducting the race 
meet.  Lou was a consultant for the New England Horsemen’s Benevolence and Protective Association 
(HBPA) earlier this year, but this ended May 31st.  Mr. Raffetto was Vice President of Racing at Suffolk 
Downs for nine years.  More recently he was an executive with the Maryland Jockey Club and Executive 
Director of the Thoroughbred Owners of California. 

Mr. Raffetto is planning on 10-15 races per day.  Three of these would be Mass bred races, which have 
their own dedicated purse money totaling $150,000 per day.  Provided there are enough entries to fill 
each race: 

• Four races would be restricted to horses that previously started at Suffolk Downs with total 
purses per day of about $110,000.   



 
 

• Up to three steeplechase races with purses in the $30-35,000 range each would be included.  
Steeplechase races are races with Thoroughbreds that race over jumps.  Suffolk last had 
steeplechase races in 1996 and 1997.   

• The rest of the races give preference to horses that raced at Suffolk in 2014 provided they meet 
the conditions of those races.   

It is estimated about $500,000 per day will be given out in purse money. In comparison, last year 
approximately $100,000 was given out in purse money each day at Suffolk.  Besides the racing, there will 
be a food truck festival and family friendly activities such as pony rides and a bouncy house.  

As far as staffing goes, NEHARC will bring back Suffolk’s Racing Secretary, Tommy Creel, and most of the 
other racing staff from 2014.  The 2014 staff was well qualified and experienced. 

If they are approved for race days, Sterling Suffolk Racecourse has requested a distribution of $1.75 
million from the Race Horse Development Fund.  This would go into the purse account, as per Chapter 
23K, section 60.  Chapter 10 of the Acts of 2015 allows for monies in the purse account to be used for 
administrative and horseracing operations.  The $1.75 million would be used as follows:  

• $1,200,000 for purses for the three days of racing;  
• $325,000 for racing operating expenses and future racing facility developmental expenses 
• $225,000 NEHBPA annual operating expenses 

If there is no live racing, the money can be escrowed for three years.     

The Acts of 2015, Chapter 10 allow Suffolk Downs to continue simulcasting through July 31, 2016 as long 
as there is a minimum of one day of live racing at Suffolk Downs in 2015 and 2016.  Approving 3 day s of 
live racing would allow Suffolk to continue to offer simulcasting and retain some of their employees.  
Last year, there was $129,787,130 bet at Suffolk on simulcast import (signals from other tracks bet on at 
Suffolk).  Simulcast commissions resulted in $483,611 of revenue collected by the State.   

If the MGC approves the racing at Suffolk Downs, the benefits to the Commonwealth include: 

Employment - continued employment for the remaining Suffolk Downs employees and employment 
opportunities during the race days including racing office staff, racing officials, concession personnel and 
a few more Gaming Commission employees.   This could be another 50 employees. 

Revenue - The Commonwealth will also get income from the daily assessments, association license fees, 
and commissions.  In 2014 that amount was; $483,611 in simulcast commission, $42,123 in live racing 
commission, $470,075 in assessments fees, $86,700 in association license fees, $37,110 in occupational 
license fees, $285,130 in out’s money (paid back to purses), $8,290 in fines and penalties and $4,440 in 
miscellaneous fees (badges). Total revenue collected was $1,417,478. Doug O’Donnell, Senior Financial 
Specialist, estimates an annual revenue loss of $1.2 million if there is no simulcasting, or $600,000 
through the end of 2015. 



 
 

Business - There will also be some money that will be spent on ancillary businesses, such as feed 
vendors, tack stores, and farms.   

Mass Bred Showcase-The Massachusetts Thoroughbred Breeders Association will benefit by racing for 
their purse money and getting to showcase their horses in their home state.  The purse money won in 
the Mass bred races does have good trickle down to other Massachusetts businesses, since the money 
stays in state. 

Benefits to the local horsemen, or horsemen who have supported Suffolk Downs, include racing for 
good purse money, getting to come home to Massachusetts for the weekend, and re-connecting with 
their fellow horsemen.  If the three days of racing are approved, it will benefit Thoroughbred racing by 
getting some money distributed for expenses, spotlight the sport, and help keep it visible while the 
future is being explored. 
 
In order to grant a racing license, the commission must take into consideration the criteria provided in 
Chapter 128A Section 3 (i).  Those criteria are:  the financial ability of the applicant to operate race track; 
the maximization of state revenues; the suitability of racing facilities for operation at the time of the 
year for which the dates are assigned; the circumstances that large groups of spectators require safe 
and convenient facilities; having and maintaining proper physical facilities for racing meetings; and 
according fair treatment to the economic interest and investments of those who in good faith have 
provided and maintained the facilities.  In order for the Commission to determine if the criteria are met, 
the Commission can consider the application materials provided by the applicant, the responses to the 
additional questions submitted to Suffolk, and the testimony and comments received from the public.   
The Commission can find that the applicant meets the criteria in section 3(i) if there is substantial 
evidence in the record before the Commission supporting such a finding evidence in the record before 
the Commission supporting such a finding  

1. Suffolk has the financial ability to operate by using money in accordance with Chapter 10 of the 
Acts of 2015 for some of their operating expenses.  Even with that money, however, the 
financial information provided in the record shows that Suffolk will lose money and run a deficit.  
They would be maximizing state revenue by continuing to simulcast since the Commonwealth 
will receive the monies required by statute to be paid to the Commission. 

2. The facility is suitable for operation during the months they are planning to race, and safe and 
convenient for a large number of spectators.    

3. The staff they are hiring is experienced and should be qualified to honestly manage racing and 
the increased purses should help ensure good quality racing.  

4. As far as having the proper physical facilities for racing, Suffolk has stated they will do some 
carpentry maintenance on the barns to be used.   



 
 

5. The track surface is usually very safe, with a low rate of injuries.  Since there will be minimal 
training on it ahead of time, the Racing Division  recommends that Suffolk be required to get an 
outside track expert to evaluate the track surface.  

6. Since the track kitchen burned down, they will have only a food truck for the people on the 
backside, but this is offset by their intention to not charge for the food.  The dorms will be re-
commissioned and available. 

One of the main drawbacks to this plan is the low number of live racing days.  They obviously won’t 
provide full time employment or work in conjunction with another meet to do so.  Also, with the horses 
being on the grounds such a short time, it really limits the amount of earned purse money that will be 
spent in Massachusetts. The high purses will be good for some horsemen, but others who raced at 
Suffolk last year won’t have horses that can compete at that level.  They have horses that fit the 
$100,000 per day purse schedule of last year.  Mr. Raffetto and Mr. Tuttle stated that they are exploring 
as many ways as they can to benefit the horses and people that supported Suffolk in the last few years.  
Mr. Raffetto feels the steeple chase races will add a festive flair to the meet and they are a known 
quantity to him as far as being able to fill the racing card.  However, some horsemen may be frustrated 
when they have lost their jobs and had to move, and $90,000 a day in purses may be going to steeple 
chasing.  This is almost as much purse money as Suffolk gave out per day last year for flat racing. 

Mr. Raffetto suggested the Commission look at the meet at Kentucky Downs as a means of comparison.  
It is a successful short festival meet.  However, there is a lot of other racing in Kentucky; the Kentucky 
Downs meet is not the only meet for Kentucky horsemen.  The NEHBPA members might not be so 
divided on the Suffolk three day meet if there were several other tracks and race meets in 
Massachusetts.  It should be noted that there is significant division among NEHBPA and MTBA members 
as to whether they want it, or would rather their money be escrowed this year. 

 

Recommendation 

If the two options for this year are the three day meet or no meet, I recommend the Commission 
approve the three day meet with the following conditions:  

1. Suffolk will get an independent expert in to review the track surface prior to racing. 
2. Suffolk will provide a detailed budget to the Commission.  
3. Every effort will be made to limit the number of steeple chase races to one per day. 
4. After each day of racing, Suffolk will report to the Commission the numbers and percentage of 

recent Suffolk horsemen and horses that benefited from their races. 
5. The date in August will be pushed back at least a week to August 15th to give the Commission 

time to approve the racing officials and key operating personnel, license and finger print the 
occupational licensees, and get their staff on board. 



 
 

6. Suffolk Downs is in arrears with the Commission in regards to Twin Spires ADW from March 
through June (an estimated $20,000); they need to provide the Commission with a signed 
contract and become current in their payments. 
 

I’ve concluded that if the three days of racing are approved, it will benefit Thoroughbred racing by 
getting some purse money distributed for expenses, spotlight the sport, and help keep it visible while 
the future is being explore 

 

 













































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































 

 
 
 
 
 

 
                                                                _____________________________ 

                  Investigations & Enforcement Bureau 

 
 

 
 
To: Chairman Crosby, Commissioner Zuniga, Commissioner Stebbins, Commissioner Cameron and 

Commissioner McHugh 
 
From: Karen Wells, Director, Investigations and Enforcement Bureau 
 
Re: Temporary Key Gaming Employee Licenses Issued 
 
Date: July 23, 2015 
 
 
Pursuant to the authority the Commission delegated to the IEB on March 19, 2015, the IEB has granted 
temporary licenses to the following individuals. 
 
Key Gaming Employees 
 
1. Andrew M. Plante, Director of Security, Plainville Gaming and Redevelopment (7/9/15) 
2. David J. DiOrio, Jr., Slot Operations Assistant Shift Manager, Plainville Gaming and Redevelopment 
(7/10/15) 
 
 
Each application has been deemed complete by the Division of Licensing. The petitioner has certified 
and the IEB has found, after reviewing the proposed operational plan for the facility, that each 
temporary license is necessary for the operation of the gaming establishment given the planned June 
24, 2015 opening date, and is not designed to circumvent normal licensing procedures.   
 
The IEB has found that in each case that the license is reasonably likely to be issued upon completion of 
the investigation. 
 
 
 



 
 

No Documents 



                                           
 
 
 

Monitoring of  
Project Construction  

and  
Licensee Requirements 

205 CMR 135 
 
 

Quarterly Report  
as of  

June 30, 2015 
 
 

 



                                           
 
 
 

Monitoring of Project Construction  
and Licensee Requirements 

Quarterly Report as of 6-30-15 
 
 

Table of Contents 
 
 
 
 205 CMR 135.2 Appendix 
Project Schedules and Reporting  Reference Reference 

Updated Guidelines ........................................................... 1 ..............................    1 

Project Schedule    ........................................................ 2(a)(c)...........................    2 

Affirmative Action Program    .............................................. 3 ..............................    3 

Project Schedule Changes (if applicable)    ........................ 4 ..............................    4 

Quarterly Status Report 
Cost of Construction    ................................................ 5(a) ............................    5 
Capitalization of Gaming License     ........................... 5(b) ............................    5 
Design & Construction Contracts    ............................. 5(c) ............................    6 
Status of Work Completed    ....................................... 5(d) ............................    7 
Work Force Statistics    .............................................. 5(e) ............................    8 
Minority Contracts    ................................................... 5(f) ............................    9 

Permits    ............................................................................ 6 .............................    10 

Organized Labor Letter ...................................................... 7 .............................    11 

Operational Affirmative Action Plan .................................... 8 .............................    12 



APPENDIX 1 
 
 

Plainridge Park Casino 
Quarterly Report to MGC 

Updated Guidelines 
As of June 30, 2015 

 
Reference 205 CMR 135.02 – (1) 
 
Updates received during the quarter ended June 30, 2015 are as follows: 
 

• 205 CMR 101: DRAFT Amendments – M.G.L.c.23K Adjudicatory Proceedings 
(Public hearing held May 21, 2015) 

 
• 205 CMR 102: DRAFT Amendments – Construction and Application 

(Public hearing held June 30, 2015) 
 

• 205 CMR 134: DRAFT Amendments –  Licensing and Registration 
(Public hearing held June 30, 2015)  

 
• 205 CMR 136: DRAFT- Sale and Distribution of Alcoholic Beverages  

(Public hearing held May 21, 2015) 
 

• 205 CMR 139: DRAFT – Continuing Disclosure and Reporting Obligations of Gaming Licensees 
(Public hearing held April 23, 2015) 
 

• 205 CMR 140: DRAFT – Gross Gaming Revenue Tax Remittance and Reporting 
(Public hearing held April 23, 2015) 
 

• 205 CMR 150:  DRAFT – Protection of Minors & Underage Youth  Race Horse  
Development Fund 
(Public hearing held May 21, 2015) 

 
• 205 CMR 151: DRAFT Amendments – Operations Certificate 

 (Public hearing held June 30, 2015) 
 

• 205 CMR 152: DRAFT - Individuals Excluded from the Gaming Establishment  
(Public hearing held May 21, 2015) 
 

Received draft / comment period open for the following: 
 

• 205 CMR 2.00: General Rules 
(Public hearing not yet scheduled) 

 
• 205 CMR 3.00: Harness Horse Racing 

(Public hearing not yet scheduled) 
 

• 205 CMR 4.00: Horse Racing 
(Public hearing not yet scheduled) 

 



APPENDIX 2 
 
 
 

Plainridge Park Casino 
Quarterly Report to MGC 

Project Schedule 
As of June 30, 2015 

 
Reference 205 CMR 135.02 – (2)(a)(c) 
 
 
Construction Activities 
 
• June 18, MGC approved Plainridge Park Casino to open the casino for test day to be held June 22, 

2015.  Temporary certificate of operations, with conditions, was issued on June 24, 2015.   
 
• Penn National Gaming issued a press release June 24, 2015 announcing Plainridge Park Casino’s 

grand opening to the public at 2 PM.   
 
• Final Certificate of Operation was issued at the MGC meeting held June 25, 2015, pending 

completion of various MGC recommendations/conditions. 
 
Non-Construction Activities 
 
• On June 29, 2015, Plainridge Park Casino received approval from the Green Building Certification 

Institute of 38 points from the design phase filing.  Remaining points required to achieve LEED Gold 
Certification to come from the construction phase filing and will be reported in a future filing. 



APPENDIX 3 
 
 
 

Plainridge Park Casino 
Quarterly Report to MGC 

Affirmative Action Program Design & Construction 
As of June 30, 2015 

 
Reference 205 CMR 135.02 – (3) 
 
 
Diversity Plan for the Design and Construction Phase of Plainridge Park Casino previously approved 
during MGC meeting held May 15, 2014 and project remains in compliance with said plan. 
 
Specifics of said progress addressed in the following Appendix 8 and Appendix 9 of this quarterly report. 



APPENDIX 4 
 
 
 

Plainridge Park Casino 
Quarterly Report to MGC 
Project Schedule Changes 

As of June 30, 2015 
 
Reference 205 CMR 135.02 – (4) 
 
 
Penn National Gaming is pleased to have completed the Plainridge Park Casino project in accordance 
with the originally submitted schedule and was never required to make any major changes to the 
method of or progress of construction throughout the duration of the project. 
 
Attached hereto is a report of photos taken as of June 19, 2015 showing completed areas of the project 
including various photos taken of the MassDOT improvements and new Pylon Sign at the entrance to 
the property. 
 
 
 



SPRINGFIELD GAMING & REDEVELOPMENT: PLAINRIDGE PARK CASINO | Job #140312 
 

TURNER | 

 

  

 

 

P L A I N R I D G E  P A R K  C A S I N O -  P R O J E C T  P H O T O S  

 

 

Various Project Photos Taken 6/19/15 
                                                    
 
    

   
 
 
 
 
 

   
 
 
 
 
 

 

Porte Cochere 

 

North Entry  

Racing Lobby 

 

North Entry  

Racing Lobby 

 

 

Exterior View 

 



SPRINGFIELD GAMING & REDEVELOPMENT: PLAINRIDGE PARK CASINO | Job #140312 
 

TURNER | 

 

 
 
 
 

   
 
   
 
 
 

   
 
   
 
 

   

 

1776 Revolution Lounge 

 

 

Slack’s Oyster House & Grill 

 

 

Gaming Floor 

 

 

Gaming Floor 

 

 

Flutie’s Sports Pub 

 

 

Flutie’s Sports Pub 

 



SPRINGFIELD GAMING & REDEVELOPMENT: PLAINRIDGE PARK CASINO | Job #140312 
 

TURNER | 

 

 
 
 
 

   
 
 
 
 

   
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Conference Space in Racing Building 

 

 

Simulcast 

 

 

Racing Office Conference Room 

 

 

 

Game Sense 

 

 

 

Racing Regulatory Building 

 

 



SPRINGFIELD GAMING & REDEVELOPMENT: PLAINRIDGE PARK CASINO | Job #140312 
 

TURNER | 

 

MassDOT Improvements Photos Taken 7/6 

      

 

     



APPENDIX 5 
 
 
 

Plainridge Park Casino 
Quarterly Report to MGC 

Cost of Construction and Capitalization of Gaming Licensee 
As of June 30, 2015 

 
Reference 205 CMR 135.02 – (5)(a)(b) 
 
Financial information requested by this section is currently being prepared by the licensee.  Such 
information will be submitted to MGC concurrent with its release to the public, which is currently 
anticipated to be July 23, 2015. 
 



APPENDIX 6

Reference 205 CMR 135.02(5)(c)

Vendor/Contractor Date Services MGC Status
Dale Wibben Studio, LLC 04/09/15 Custom Memorabilia Cases NGV - Registrant 
Comtronics Wireless Communications 04/10/15 CCIP Agreement for Two Way Radio Install NGV - Registrant 
Gravotech, Inc. 04/20/15 Laser Engraving Equipment NGV - Registrant
Advanced Gaming Associates, LLC 04/10/15 CCIP Agreement VGP - Temporary
TC Millwork, Inc. 04/16/15 CCIP Agreement NGV - Registrant 
Jeffrey Donohoe Associates, LLC 04/17/15 Traffic Studies Exempt
Alpha Video & Audio, Inc. 04/29/15 Software Services NGV - Registrant 
Traf-Sys, Inc. 05/04/15 Install of People Counting System NGV - Registrant 
Gerald Phelan 05/12/15 License Agreement Exempt
NUCO, Inc. 05/19/15 Bulk CO2 provider NGV - Registrant
Higgins Corporation 05/20/15 Datacard System Installation NGV - Registrant 
VisionSolutions 05/28/15 Software Services NGV - Registrant 
4028546 Canada, Inc. d/b/a iView Systems 05/29/15 Software Services NGV - Registrant 
Global Cash Access/NEWave Inc. 05/29/15 Software Services VGP - Temporary
Kiosk Information Systems 06/08/15 Kiosk Installation NGV - Registrant 
eConnect 06/12/15 Software Installation NGV - Pending
M.A.C. Graphics 06/18/15 Custom Vinyl Banners NGV - Registrant 

LIST OF DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS ISSUED 
QUARTER ENDING JUNE 30, 2015

Plainridge Park Casino
Quarterly Report to MGC

Design and Construction Contracts
As of June 30, 2015





APPENDIX 8 
 
 
 

Plainridge Park Casino 
Quarterly Report to MGC 

Project Construction Work Force 
As of June 30, 2015 

 

Reference 205 CMR 135.02 – (5)(e) 
 
 
Project Construction Workforce reports the following for WBE/MBE/VBE participation: 
 
 Minority 17% participation to date vs. goal of 16% 
 Women  4% participation to date vs. goal of 7% 
 Veteran  7% participation to date vs. aspirational goal of 3% 
 
Detailed statistical reports attached: 
 

 Subcontractors Workforce Percentages 

 Total Weekly Manpower Chart 

 Workers Onsite by Company Log 
 
Deviation from established goals: 
 
 Women  4% participation to date vs. goal of 7% 
 
The three percent cumulative shortfall of the women’s workforce goal remains a result of the number of 
larger trade areas represented on the job (site, plumbing, electrical, drywall and mechanical).  These 
trades have struggled to meet goal percentages to date due to the overall composition of their 
workforce in the general Massachusetts area, and therefore, the workforce available for the Plainridge 
casino project. However, the percentage has remained steady throughout the rise and fall of manpower 
during the entire construction project. 
 
 



WEEK      

ENDING
SUBCONTRACTOR

THIS WEEKS 

HOURS 

LAST WEEKS 

HOURS
Y-T-D JOB HOURS

Minority                                   

Y-T-D HOURS

LAST WEEK 

Minority     %

THIS WEEK 

Minority   %

Minority YEAR 

TO DATE %

Female                  

Y-T-D HOURS

LAST            

WEEK Female       

%

THIS WEEK 

Female       %

Female              

YEAR TO DATE 

%

Veteran               

Y-T-D HOURS

LAST WEEK 

Veteran %

THIS WEEK 

Veteran     %

Veteran YEAR 

TO DATE %

6/21/2015 Turner Construction 935.0 703.0 24,685.0 6,330 15 8 26 2,540 9 7 10 127 7 8 1

6/21/2015 Marois Brothers 698.0 671.5 32,128.0 3,360 6 7 10 132.0 0 0 0 3,751 18 17 12

6/21/2015 S&F Concrete 45.5 105.5 6,697.5 618 0 0 9 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

6/21/2015 NB Kenney 93.0 359.0 30,464.5 1,814 0 0 6 2,385 11 0 8 4,444 13 47 15

FINAL Prime Steel 154.5 0.0 6,393.5 768 0 0 12 389 0 0 6 169 0 0 3

6/21/2015 Ostrow Electrical 740.0 705.5 32,417.0 3,501 7 5 11 2,678 12 6 8 7,519 11 13 23

FINAL Soini Erosion Control 0.0 0.0 16.0 16 0 0 100 0.0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

FINAL Melo's Rodbusters 0.0 0.0 1,424.0 218 0 0 15 323.0 0 0 23 0 0 0 0

FINAL Kone 0.0 0.0 1,633.0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

6/21/2015 Costa Brothers 66.0 8.0 8,724.5 576 0 12 7 0 0 0 0 1,616 0 27 19

FINAL Willow Tree 0.0 0.0 200.0 72 0 0 36 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

FINAL King Erectors 0.0 0.0 8,340.0 2,204 0 0 26 546 0 0 7 0 0 0 0

6/21/2015 Modern Glass 106.3 152.3 3,894.8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 201 3 0 5

6/21/2015 Chapman Waterproofing 90.0 104.0 3,881.0 867 0 0 22 73 0 0 2 299 0 0 8

FINAL TJ McCartney 0.0 0.0 14,888.5 4,120 0 0 28 0 0 0 0 682 0 0 5

FINAL Pro Cut 0.0 0.0 457.0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

FINAL RM Technologies 0.0 0.0 4,277.0 2,900 0 0 68 0 0 0 0 35 0 0 1

6/21/2015 Arden Engineering 116.0 173.0 9,829.0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 134 0 0 1

6/21/2015 Island International 32.0 38.0 10,242.0 2,100 0 0 21 0 0 0 0 736 0 0 7

FINAL Clifford & Galvin 0.0 0.0 441.0 101 0 0 23 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

6/21/2015 Ryan Iron 75.0 61.0 4,154.0 177 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

6/21/2015 Titan Roofing 64.0 155.5 10,061.0 155 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 570 0 0 6

FINAL DDS Industries 0.0 0.0 5,599.3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 789 0 0 14

FINAL Hallamore Corp 0.0 0.0 307.8 9 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 56 0 0 18

6/21/2015 Cox Engineering 56.0 200.0 32,119.5 3,619 20 71 11 0 0 0 0 2,421 0 0 8

6/21/2015 Coghlin Electric 2,474.5 2,277.0 72,845.5 9,542 15 74 13 2,994 3 3 4 4,546 5 4 6

6/21/2015 Commonwealth Scaffold 607.0 605.0 8,599.5 333 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 27 0 0 0

FINAL Atlantic Contracting 0.0 0.0 689.0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

FINAL Reid Electric 0.0 0.0 552.0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 552 0 0 100

FINAL E.S. Boulos 0.0 0.0 3,382.0 398 0 0 12 0 0 0 0 170 0 0 5

6/21/2015 Soep Painting 296.0 1,320.0 11,538.0 2,545 22 24 22 224 0 0 2 0 0 0 0

FINAL Roadsafe Traffic Safety 0.0 0.0 145.0 31 0 0 21 0.0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

6/21/2015 H. Carr & Sons 268.0 706.0 43,108.5 14,550 43 17 34 1,223 0 0 3 1,124 0 0 3

6/21/2015 High Point Interiors 249.0 240.0 5,647.0 519 0 0 9 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

6/21/2015 Circle Floors 192.0 672.0 6,970.0 6,060 78 70 87 16 2 0 0 0 0 0 0

FINAL New England Decks & Floors 27.0 63.0 4,099.0 916 17 15 22 0 0 0 0 139 0 0 3

6/21/2015 Frontline 617.5 650.0 5,204.0 1,193 21 16 23 1,747 33 32 34 0 0 0 0

SUBCONTRACTORS WORKFORCE PERCENTAGES ~ Plainridge Park Casino 



WEEK      

ENDING
SUBCONTRACTOR

THIS WEEKS 

HOURS 

LAST WEEKS 

HOURS
Y-T-D JOB HOURS

Minority                                   

Y-T-D HOURS

LAST WEEK 

Minority     %

THIS WEEK 

Minority   %

Minority YEAR 

TO DATE %

Female                  

Y-T-D HOURS

LAST            

WEEK Female       

%

THIS WEEK 

Female       %

Female              

YEAR TO DATE 

%

Veteran               

Y-T-D HOURS

LAST WEEK 

Veteran %

THIS WEEK 

Veteran     %

Veteran YEAR 

TO DATE %

SUBCONTRACTORS WORKFORCE PERCENTAGES ~ Plainridge Park Casino 

6/21/2015 Eaton Door 82.0 83.0 1,387.5 254 10 0 18 6 1 0 0 8 0 0 1

FINAL Adirondack Studios 0.0 0.0 1,582.0 865 0 0 55 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

6/21/2015 Alleghany Millwork 231.0 347.0 6,845.0 162 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 906 12 21 13

6/21/2015 ValleyCrest Landscape 1,017.0 830.0 5,150.5 1,132 20 19 22 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

FINAL PJ Keating 0.0 0.0 1,456.0 190 0 0 13 0 0 0 0 41 0 0 3

TOTALS 9,332.3 11,229.3 432,475.3 72,211.6 18 12 17 15,275.0 4 4 4 31,058.8 4 6 7

Minority 17 %

Female 4 %

Veteran 7 %*Aspirational 3%

Project Goals Year To Date

16%

7%



SUBCONTRACTOR

Minority 

HOURS

Minority 

%

Last week 

Minority 

%

Female 

HOURS

Female      

%

Last 

Week 

Female    

%

Veteran      

HOURS Veteran  %

Last Week    

Veteran     

%

TOTAL 

HOURS

Last 

Weeks  

Hour Week Ending

Turner Construction 76 8 15.0 69.0 7 9 75.0 8 7 24685.0 703.0 6/21/2015

Marois Brothers 49 7 6.0 0.0 0 0 118.5 17 18 32128.0 671.5 6/21/2015

S&F Concrete 0 0 0.0 0.0 0 0 0.0 0 0 6697.5 105.5 6/21/2015

NB Kenney 0 0 0.0 0.0 0 11 44.0 47 13 30464.5 359.0 6/21/2015

Prime Steel 0 0 0.0 0.0 0 0 0.0 0 0 6393.5 0.0 FINAL

Ostrow Electrical 36 5 7.0 48.0 6 12 99.0 13 11 32417.0 705.5 6/21/2015

Soini Erosion Control 0 0 0.0 0.0 0 0 0.0 0 0 16.0 0.0 FINAL

Melo's Rodbusters 0 0 0.0 0.0 0 0 0.0 0 0 1424.0 0.0 FINAL

Kone 0 0 0.0 0.0 0 0 0.0 0 0 1633.0 0.0 FINAL

Costa Brothers Masonry 8 12 0.0 0.0 0 0 18.0 27 0 8724.5 8.0 6/21/2015

Willow Tree 0 0 0.0 0.0 0 0 0.0 0 0 200.0 0.0 FINAL

King Erectors 0 0 0.0 0.0 0 0 0.0 0 0 8340.0 0.0 FINAL

Modern Glass 0 0 0.0 0.0 0 0 0.0 0 3 3894.8 152.3 6/21/2015

Chapman Waterproofing 0 0 0.0 0.0 0 0 0.0 0 0 3881.0 104.0 6/21/2015

TJ McCartney 0 0 0.0 0.0 0 0 0.0 0 0 14888.5 0.0 FINAL

Pro Cut 0 0 0.0 0.0 0 0 0.0 0 0 457.0 0.0 FINAL

RM Technologies 0 0 0.0 0.0 0 0 0.0 0 0 4277.0 0.0 FINAL

Arden Engineering 0 0 0.0 0.0 0 0 0.0 0 0 9829.0 173.0 6/21/2015

Island International 0 0 0.0 0.0 0 0 0.0 0 0 10242.0 38.0 6/21/2015

Clifford & Galvin 0 0 0.0 0.0 0 0 0.0 0 0 441.0 0.0 FINAL

Ryan Iron 0 0 0.0 0.0 0 0 0.0 0 0 4154.0 61.0 6/21/2015

Titan Roofing 0 0 0.0 0.0 0 0 0.0 0 0 10061.0 155.5 6/21/2015

DDS Industries 0 0 0.0 0.0 0 0 0.0 0 0 5599.3 0.0 FINAL

Hallamore Corp 0 0 0.0 0.0 0 0 0.0 0 0 307.8 0.0 FINAL

Cox Engineering 40 71 20.0 0.0 0 0 0.0 0 0 32119.5 200.0 6/21/2015

Coghlin Electric 345 74 15.0 74.0 3 3 111.0 4 5 72845.5 2,277.0 6/21/2015

Commonwealth Scaffold 0 0 0.0 0.0 0 0 0.0 0 0 8599.5 605.0 6/21/2015

Atlantic Contracting 0 0 0.0 0.0 0 0 0.0 0 0 689.0 0.0 FINAL

Reid Electric 0 0 0.0 0.0 0 0 0.0 0 0 552.0 0.0 FINAL

ES Boulos 0 0 0.0 0.0 0 0 0.0 0 0 3382.0 0.0 FINAL

Soep Painting 72 24 22.0 0.0 0 0 0.0 0 0 11538.0 1,320.0 6/21/2015

Roadsafe Traffic Safety 0 0 0.0 0.0 0 0 0.0 0 0 145.0 0.0 FINAL

WEEKLY HOURS AND PERCENTAGES ~ Plainridge Park Casino

7/9/2015 Totals YTD  weekly percentages



SUBCONTRACTOR

Minority 

HOURS

Minority 

%

Last week 

Minority 

%

Female 

HOURS

Female      

%

Last 

Week 

Female    

%

Veteran      

HOURS Veteran  %

Last Week    

Veteran     

%

TOTAL 

HOURS

Last 

Weeks  

Hour Week Ending

WEEKLY HOURS AND PERCENTAGES ~ Plainridge Park Casino

H. Carr & Sons 45 17 43.0 0.0 0 0 0.0 0 0 43108.5 706.0 6/21/2015

High Point Interiors 0 0 0.0 0.0 0 0 0.0 0 0 5647.0 240.0 6/21/2015

Circle Floors 135 70 78.0 0.0 0 2 0.0 0 0 6970.0 672.0 6/21/2015

New England Decks & Floors 4 15 17.0 0.0 0 0 0.0 0 0 4099.0 63.0 FINAL

Frontline 96 16 21.0 200.0 32 33 0.0 0 0 5204.0 650.0 6/21/2015

Eaton Door 0 0 10.0 0.0 0 1 0.0 0 0 1387.5 83.0 6/21/2015

Adirondack Studios 0 0 0.0 0.0 0 0 0.0 0 0 1582.0 0.0 FINAL

Alleghany Millwork 0 0 0.0 0.0 0 0 49.0 21 12 6845.0 347.0 6/21/2015

ValleyCrest Landscape 196 19 20.0 0.0 0 0 0.0 0 0 5150.5 830.0 6/21/2015

PJ Keating 0 0 0.0 0.0 0 0 0.0 0 0 1456.0 0.0 FINAL

TOTAL HOURS FOR THE WEEK
1101.5 391.0 514.5 432475.3

TOTAL % FOR THE WEEK
12 4 6  

7/9/2015 Totals YTD  weekly percentages



The Total Mandays per Week is the sum of the total number of days worked by each worker in a given week.

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

1800

11/22/2013 3/2/2014 6/10/2014 9/18/2014 12/27/2014 4/6/2015 7/15/2015

T
o

ta
l 

M
a

n
d

a
y

s 
P

e
r 

W
e

e
k

Week Ending Date

Plainridge Park Casino 

Total Weekly Manpower 

Total Mandays per Week



Plainridge Park Casino

Cumulative individuals onsite through June 30, 2015.

Company Number of Workers

AA Penta Corp 4

Aaxiom 3

ACS 1

Adirondack Studios 5

Adriana Studios 3

Advanced Gaming 5

AJ Conveyor 3

Aldon Electric 2

Amquip Crane 2

Arden Engineering 14

Atlantic 5

ATR Sales 3

Baldwin 2

Boston Lightning Rod 3

Briggs 3

Bristol Fire 1

Chapman 20

Circle Floors 19

Clifford & Galvin 5

Coghlin Electric 66

Coke 5

Colonial Systems 10

Commonwealth Scaffold 27

Cook Landclearing 2

Cosco Inc. 8

Costa 14

Cox Engineering 42

Currie 1

Dagle Electric 1

Daktronics 1

DDS 8

DeNuccio Inc. 1

Don Martin 11

Drain Shooter 1

E.S. Boulos 21

East Coast Interiors 27

Easybar 6

FEI 5

Ferrante MFG 3

Frontline 14

Glancy 4

Global Manufacturing 2

H. Carr & Sons 70

H.A.S. 2

Hallmore 3

Haron 1

HAS Construction 9

Heritage 2

High Point 2

High Voltage Maintenance 2

Hub Foundation 5

Imperatore 3

Island 13



Plainridge Park Casino

Cumulative individuals onsite through June 30, 2015.

Company Number of Workers

JCJ Arch. 2

JME 1

Johnson Insul 3

King 18

Kone 6

Lemoi Erectors 2

MARR 3

MBI 39

MD Drilling 11

Melo Rod 12

Modern Glass 21

MTK Const. 4

NBK 53

NEFS 8

New England Decks 14

Ostrow 30

Penn Gaming 38

Perry Assoc. 1

Pinck 1

PJ Keating 10

Prime 18

Pro Cut 5

Reldom Corp. - Penn 2

Richard Reed Electric 1

RMT 17

Ryan Iron 15

S&F Concrete 69

S.O.S. 1

Security Fence 6

Soep Painting 27

Soini 5

Solaire Generation 2

Southwest Surveillance 1

Spraymaster Tech 5

Steelco 2

Sully Mac 10

Sweeney Drywall 6

Tango 4

TCM Millwork - Penn 1

Thyssen Krupp 6

Titan 33

TJ McCartney 55

Turner 51

Unistrut 1

Valley Crest 14

Ver-tex 6

W.S. Kenney 4

Waterman 1

Willow Tree 5

Total 1150



 
APPENDIX 9 

 
 
 

Plainridge Park Casino 
Quarterly Report to MGC 

Contracts and Payments to Minority, Women and  
Veteran Business Enterprises for Construction Phase 

As of June 30, 2015 
 
Reference 205 CMR 135.02 – (5)(f) 
 
 
Detailed statistical reports attached: 
M/W/VBE Tracking Report updated through 6/30/15 
 

• Turner has issued $97.5 million in construction contracts and change orders and received 
commitments of the following M/W/VBE participation: 
 
 Minority 10% participation to date vs. goal of 4% 
 Women  13% participation to date vs. goal of 7% 

Veteran  9% participation to date vs. aspirational goal of 3% 
 
Actual Payments to Minority Business Enterprises 

 
• Commitments totaling $30.8 million have been made to MBE/WBE/VBE enterprises.   
• Turner Construction’s pay application for June is still under review, in the normal course; 

therefore payment has not been made.  MBE/WBE/VBE payment statistics are being reported as 
of May 31, 2015 which amounted to $26 million (84% of commitments paid).  



TURNER CONSTRUCTION COMPANY

Plainridge Casino

M/W/VBE TRACKING

Updated: 5/31/2015
Updated At Award Updated Prior to Start and During Construction Updated as Payments Are Made

Trade

Contract Award 

Date Award Amount Revised Amount Awarded Prime Subcontractor MBE / WBE / VBE Opportunity MBE % WBE % VBE % MBE % WBE % VBE % MBE WBE VBE 

Existing Conditions Demo and Structure 05/16/14 68,000$                  68,000$                  Turner None

lower tier

Temp Stair 05/16/14 19,850$                  748,125$                Commonwealth None

lower tier

Earthwork 04/11/14 4,563,500$             9,084,063$             Marois

lower tier Don Martin Corporation 680,000.00$           15% 664,325.00$           7% 92,594.00$             

FC Corporation 252,000.00$           6%

Security Fence Company 164,000.00$           4% 164,000.00$           2%

Willow Tree Outdoor 95,000.00$             2% 71,500.00$             1% 64,350.00$             

Markings, Inc. 28,000.00$             1%

Dagle Electric 335,000.00$           3%

Fabiano Oil 200,000.00$           2%

Earthwork - Garage 05/12/14 107,404$                160,209$                Marois None

lower tier

Concrete 04/04/14 2,202,000$             2,760,709$             S&F S&F 1,929,000.00$        88% 2,642,949.00$        93% 2,543,119.00$        

lower tier Rebars and Mesh 138,000.00$           6% 138,000.00$           5%

Melo's Rod Busters 135,000.00$           6% 135,000.00$           5%

Concrete - Garage 05/12/14 412,000$                607,583$                S&F S&F 362,000.00$           88% 362,000.00$           60% 607,583.00$           

lower tier Rebars and Mesh 30,000.00$             7% 30,000.00$             5%

Melo's Rod Busters 20,000.00$             5% 20,000.00$             3%

Precast Garage 07/09/14 130,602$                135,275$                Blakeslee Prestress None

Demolition Award 07/16/14 493,330$                598,326$                R M Technologies R M Technologies 493,330.00$           100% 598,326.00$           100% 564,555.00$           

Masonry 06/10/14 1,574,000$             1,607,541$             Costa Brothers Masonry Costa Brothers Masonry 1,574,000.00$        100% 1,607,541.00$        100% 1,524,075.00$        

lower tier

Steel Framing 04/11/14 1,151,000$             2,399,552$             Industries Canatal

lower tier Erection and Welding 130,000.00$           11% 132,216.66$           5%

Misc Metal 07/09/14 641,000$                1,375,047$             Ryan Iron Works None

lower tier

Damproofing & Waterproofing 06/19/14 676,142$                952,538$                Chapman

lower tier Gilbert & Becker 21,000.00$             3% 21,000.00$             2%

Villanova 62,000.00$             9%

Supplies Exchange 62,000.00$             6%

Membrane Roofing 05/16/14 1,280,000$             1,442,653$             Titan Roofing Titan Roofing 1,280,000.00$        100% 1,442,653.00$        100% 1,280,745.00$        

lower tier

Spray on Fireproofing and Garage Spray Insulation 07/24/14 1,492,000$             1,948,523$             Island International

lower tier Iroquois Bar Corp 12,000.00$             8%

Spray Foam 06/17/14 138,500$                182,023$                Island International

lower tier Iroquois Bar Corp 3,000.00$               2%

Doors & Frames 09/10/14 424,124$                625,616$                Eaton Door and Frame None

lower tier

Entrances Storefronts & Curtainwall 06/17/14 3,367,424$             4,483,849$             Modern Glass

lower tier Material 314,605.00$           9%

Hardware 55,811.00$             2%

Coulter Construction 330,000.00$           7%

Plaster & Gypsum Board 06/10/14 915,000$                1,736,761$             TJ McCartney TJ McCartney 915,000.00$           100% 1,625,161.00$        100% 1,683,336.00$        

lower tier

Original Commitment Current Amount Payments to Date

Printed: 7/14/2015 11:20 AM page 1 of 3



TURNER CONSTRUCTION COMPANY

Plainridge Casino

M/W/VBE TRACKING

Updated: 5/31/2015
Updated At Award Updated Prior to Start and During Construction Updated as Payments Are Made

Trade

Contract Award 

Date Award Amount Revised Amount Awarded Prime Subcontractor MBE / WBE / VBE Opportunity MBE % WBE % VBE % MBE % WBE % VBE % MBE WBE VBE 

Original Commitment Current Amount Payments to Date

Folding Partitions 11/12/14 26,600$                  27,349$                  CRF, Inc Interior Systems None

lower tier

Millwork 11/26/14 1,959,976$             2,110,643$             Allegheny Millwork None

lower tier

Flooring 11/26/14 731,553$                818,503$                Circle Flooring None

lower tier

Theming 11/26/14 1,631,817$             1,610,533$             Adirondack Studios

lower tier Penn Stainles Products 10,800.00$             0.7% 10,800.00$             0.7%

Passonno Paints Inc 1,000.00$               0.06% 1,000.00$               0.1%

JH Bennett 5,800.00$               0.4% 5,800.00$               0.4%

Paint 11/25/14 1,215,000$             1,220,477$             Soep Painting

lower tier Senices Enterprise 135,000.00$           11% 135,000.00$           11%

Photovoltaic Solar Generation Award 09/21/14 1,765,899$             1,774,171$             E.S. Boulos of Westbrook

lower tier Certified Connections Inc. 406,156.77$           23% 406,156.77$           22%

Kitchen Equipment 10/02/14 3,858,699$             3,851,187$             Johnson-Lancaster None

lower tier

Pre-Engineered Metal Building 04/11/14 5,133,520$             5,247,179$             Currie Building Systems None

lower tier

Resinous Flooring 11/26/14 239,868$                428,222$                New England Decks and Floors New England Decks and Floors 239,868.00$           100% 239,868.00$           100%

lower tier

Elevators - Garage 05/16/14 389,591$                389,591$                Kone None

lower tier

Fire Protection- Garage 06/05/14 420,986$                434,358$                Arden Engineering

lower tier E.L. Waterman 50,000.00$             12% 50,000.00$             12%

Temp Fire Protection 05/20/14 9,936$                    9,936$                    Bristol Fire Protection None

lower tier

Fire Protection- Casino 09/11/14 1,422,950$             1,485,673$             Arden Engineering

lower tier E.L. Waterman 150,000.00$           11% 150,000.00$           9%

Plumbing- Casino 09/22/14 2,664,906$             2,783,537$             NB Kenney

lower tier Construction Planners 79,900.00$             3% 83,287.91$             3%

Hat Creek Outfit, Inc 293,000.00$           11% 110,488.46$           3%

Total Mechanical 186,139.89$           6%

Plumbing - Garage 05/16/14 141,629$                150,528$                NB Kenney None

lower tier

Temp Plumbing 04/11/14 39,009$                  39,009$                  NB Kenney None

lower tier

Underground Plumbing 06/17/14 438,684$                1,138,002$             NB Kenney None

lower tier

HVAC Parking Garage 08/14/14 2,456,000$             2,561,115$             DDS Industries

lower tier General Safety Services 3,000.00$               0.1% 3,000.00$               0.1%

HVAC Casino 09/22/14 7,678,000$             7,642,969$             Cox Engineering Cox Engineering 7,678,000.00$        100% 7,642,969.00$        100% 6,963,456.00$        

lower tier

Casino Elevator 08/08/14 153,750$                245,213$                ThyssenKrupp None

lower tier

Printed: 7/14/2015 11:20 AM page 2 of 3



TURNER CONSTRUCTION COMPANY

Plainridge Casino

M/W/VBE TRACKING

Updated: 5/31/2015
Updated At Award Updated Prior to Start and During Construction Updated as Payments Are Made

Trade

Contract Award 

Date Award Amount Revised Amount Awarded Prime Subcontractor MBE / WBE / VBE Opportunity MBE % WBE % VBE % MBE % WBE % VBE % MBE WBE VBE 

Original Commitment Current Amount Payments to Date

MEP Equipment - Casino and Garage 04/11/14 2,364,835$             2,462,412$             Turner Logistics None

lower tier

MEP Equipment - Simulcast 06/17/14 842,669$                842,669$                Turner Logistics None

lower tier

Overhead Door & Loading Dock Equipment 09/11/14 63,370$                  83,130$                  Collins Overhead Door, Inc

lower tier Dagle Electric 1,901.00$               3% 1,901.00$               3%

Electrical- Casino 09/22/14 7,131,043$             8,915,007$             Coghlin Electric Coghlin Electric 7,131,043.00$        100% 8,915,007.00$        100% 7,701,613.00$        

lower tier

Electrical - Casino 01/23/15 2,370,064$             Ostrow Electric

lower tier

Electrical - Garage 05/12/14 1,595,615$             1,889,211$             Ostrow Electric

lower tier Reid Electric 215,000.00$           13% 105,664.00$           4% 105,664.00$           

Fire Code Design 58,000.00$             4% 58,000.00$             2%

Underground and Site Electrical 06/17/14 2,317,850$             2,417,146$             Ostrow Electric

lower tier Reid Electric 75,000.00$             3% 75,000.00$             3% 11,140.00$             

Granite City Electric 225,000.00$           10% 214,801.00$           9% 214,801.00$           

Casino GWB/Casino & Garage ACT 11/25/14 4,086,000$             4,609,146$             H. Carr & Sons

lower tier Tavares, LLC/Essex 450,000.00$           11% 450,000.00$           9%

Tile and Interior Stone 11/25/14 1,750,000$             1,893,525$             High Point Interiors None

lower tier

Specialties 11/26/14 132,202$                150,231$                Ver-Tex None

lower tier

Cleaning 02/17/15 16,900$                  36,511$                  Front Line, Inc Front Line, Inc 16,900.00$             16,900.00$             

lower tier

Landscape 03/19/15 873,406$                873,406$                Valley Crest Landscaping

lower tier

TOTALS TO DATE 73,208,139$           97,505,352$           8,373,092$             11% 9,531,655$             13% 8,014,368$             11% 9,390,550$             10% 13,009,764$           13% 8,389,919$             9% 7,082,827$             11,508,858$           7,588,527$             

Original Commitments 25,919,115$        Current Commitments 30,790,234$        Payments to Date 26,180,212$        

97,505,352$        PROJECT GOALS COMMITMENT TOTALS

25,919,115$        

30,790,234$        MBE - 4% MBE Amount 10%

9,974,175$          WBE - 7% WBE Amount 13%

26,180,212$        VBE - 3% VBE Amount 9%

Total Contracts and Change Orders Awarded to Date

Total W/M/VBE Commitments to Date

Total W/M/VBE Payments through December 31, 2014

Total W/M/VBE Payments through March 31. 2015

Total W/M/VBE Original Commitments

Printed: 7/14/2015 11:20 AM page 3 of 3



APPENDIX 9 
 
 
 

Plainridge Park Casino 
Quarterly Report to MGC 

Contracts and Payments to Minority, Women and  
Veteran Business Enterprises for Design Phase 

As of June 30, 2015 
 

Reference 205 CMR 135.02 – (5)(f) 
 
Detailed statistical report: 

 
 Minority 0% participation to date vs. goal of 4% 
 Women  0% participation to date vs. goal of 7% 

Veteran  0% participation to date vs. aspirational goal of 3% 
 
Deviation from established goals: 
 

 Unique set of circumstances, as described in the June 30, 2014 quarterly report, remain the 
same. 

 
Actual Payments to Minority Business Enterprises 

 
Not Applicable 
 



APPENDIX 10 
 
 
 

Plainridge Park Casino 
Quarterly Report to MGC 

Permits 
As of June 30, 2015 

 

Reference 205 CMR 135.02 – (6) 
 
 
Permit Chart and Corresponding Documents (pursuant to 205 CMR 120.01) 
 
Permit Status Report dated June 30, 2015 attached: 

 Corrected the issue date for the Plainville Conservation Commission Order of Conditions permit 
for the Racing Building and Parking to February 26, 2015. 

 Three new permits received from the Plainville Building Department: 
1. Temporary Occupancy Permit for Racing Regulatory Building issued on June 12, 2015. 
2. Certificate of Use and Occupancy Racing Regulatory Building issued on June 18 2015. 
3. 30 Day Temporary Certificate of Use and Occupancy for the casino building issued on 

June 19, 2015. 

 On July 16, 2015, the Temporary Certificate of Use and Occupancy certification was 
extended to July 27, 2015. 

 As required for occupancy permit, all five elevators received certificates of operation and have 
been posted in each cab accordingly. 

 Received Certificate of Operations from MGC on June 25, 2015 
 
Updates to MassDOT/MEPA Process 
 

 Received Substantial Completion Letter from MassDOT on June 18, 2015 
 
Permit Appeals 
 

 None 
 









APPENDIX 11 
 
 
 

Plainridge Park Casino 
Quarterly Report to MGC 
Notice to Organized Labor 

As To Licensees Commitments for Affirmative Action 
As of June 30, 2015 

 
Reference 205 CMR 135.02 – (7) 
 
 

No change from last quarter.  Remained in compliance with licensing requirements and commitments 
pursuant to MGL. C23K various sections.   

Turner’s relationship with the Business Agents and Managers remained positive and receptive 
throughout the construction project and they continued to be cooperative in reinforcing the goals of 
16% minority, 7% female and 3% aspirational veterans.  

 

 
 



APPENDIX 12 
 
 
 

Plainridge Park Casino 
Quarterly Report to MGC 

Operational Affirmative Action Plan 
As of June 30, 2015 

 

Reference 205 CMR 135.02 – (8) 
 
 
Detailed Statistical Report Attached: 
 

 Plainville Gaming and Redevelopment made commitments totaling $15 million for the provision 
of goods and services and received the following M/W/VBE participation: 
 
 Minority 3% participation to date vs. goal of 6% 
 Women  19% participation to date vs. goal of 12% 

Veteran  14% participation to date vs. aspirational goal of 3% 
 

 Plainville Gaming and Redevelopment continues to reach out to M/W/VBE enterprises to 
identify any further opportunities for participation. 

 
Actual Payments to Minority Businesses 
 

 As of June 30, 2015, total commitments of $5.4 million have been made to M/W/VBE 
enterprises. 

 Through June 30, 2015, payments to M/W/VBE enterprises amounted to $4.1 million  
(77% of commitments paid).  

 
 
Vendor Outreach Programs: 
 

 No outreach programs held during this quarter. 
 



Plainridge, Mass - Diversity Reporting 
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment Only

Based on Wennsoft Commitments

C.E. Communication Services, Inc.

PO Number Purchase Order Total  MBE   WBE   VBE   

PR0232 $1,683.13 $0.00 $1,683.13 $0.00

PR0220 $4,566.78 $0.00 $4,566.78 $0.00

PR0221 $6,879.60 $0.00 $6,879.60 $0.00

PR0225 $3,748.50 $0.00 $3,748.50 $0.00

PR0231 $5,521.15 $0.00 $5,521.15 $0.00

PR0239 $12,328.52 $0.00 $12,328.52 $0.00

PR0264 $13,854.32 $0.00 $13,854.32 $0.00

PR0273 $9,784.76 $0.00 $9,784.76 $0.00

$58,366.76 $0.00 $58,366.76 $0.00

Comtronics Corp.

PO Number Purchase Order Total  MBE   WBE   VBE   

PR0176 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

PR0201 $213,156.23 $0.00 $213,156.23 $0.00

$213,156.23 $0.00 $213,156.23 $0.00

E.GADS, LLC

PO Number Purchase Order Total  MBE   WBE   VBE   

PR0163 $1,258,728.00 $0.00 $1,258,728.00 $0.00

$1,258,728.00 $0.00 $1,258,728.00 $0.00

Easybar

PO Number Purchase Order Total  MBE   WBE   VBE   

PR0064 $289,424.63 $0.00 $289,424.63 $0.00

$289,424.63 $0.00 $289,424.63 $0.00

Kittredge Equipment Co. Inc.

PO Number Purchase Order Total  MBE   WBE   VBE   

PR0265 $1,420.65 $0.00 $1,420.65 $0.00

PR0249 $332,687.20 $0.00 $332,687.20 $0.00

PR0184 $4,316.60 $0.00 $4,316.60 $0.00

Monday, July 06, 2015 Page 1 of 4



PR0144 $44,704.56 $0.00 $44,704.56 $0.00

PR0289 $2,609.42 $0.00 $2,609.42 $0.00

PR0280 $17,736.45 $0.00 $17,736.45 $0.00

PR0145 $1,054.01 $0.00 $1,054.01 $0.00

$404,528.89 $0.00 $404,528.89 $0.00

Macgraphics

PO Number Purchase Order Total  MBE   WBE   VBE   

PR0284 $2,405.50 $0.00 $2,405.50 $0.00

PR0228 $2,050.65 $0.00 $2,050.65 $0.00

PR0303 $10,081.63 $0.00 $10,081.63 $0.00

$14,537.78 $0.00 $14,537.78 $0.00

Menu Solutions, Inc.

PO Number Purchase Order Total  MBE   WBE   VBE   

PR0277 $5,708.64 $0.00 $0.00 $5,708.64

$5,708.64 $0.00 $0.00 $5,708.64

Milhench Supply Co.

PO Number Purchase Order Total  MBE   WBE   VBE   

PR0310 $7,032.25 $0.00 $7,032.25 $0.00

PR0155 $38,740.05 $0.00 $38,740.05 $0.00

PR0312 $1,209.83 $0.00 $1,209.83 $0.00

PR0233 $4,957.81 $0.00 $4,957.81 $0.00

PR0262 $15,598.54 $0.00 $15,598.54 $0.00

PR0299 $4,913.05 $0.00 $4,913.05 $0.00

PR0296 $4,801.74 $0.00 $4,801.74 $0.00

PR0276 $3,700.50 $0.00 $3,700.50 $0.00

PR0275 $8,034.65 $0.00 $8,034.65 $0.00

$88,988.42 $0.00 $88,988.42 $0.00

MOMSOUTH

PO Number Purchase Order Total  MBE   WBE   VBE   

PR0309 $18,856.42 $0.00 $0.00 $18,856.42

$18,856.42 $0.00 $0.00 $18,856.42

New England Office Supply

PO Number Purchase Order Total  MBE   WBE   VBE   

Monday, July 06, 2015 Page 2 of 4



PR0268 $6,141.25 $6,141.25 $0.00 $0.00

PR0186 $2,735.83 $2,735.83 $0.00 $0.00

PR0297 $1,089.06 $1,089.06 $0.00 $0.00

PR0218 $2,398.18 $2,398.18 $0.00 $0.00

PR0137 $531.23 $531.23 $0.00 $0.00

PR0103 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

PR0250 $3,902.49 $3,902.49 $0.00 $0.00

PR0313 $1,338.21 $1,338.21 $0.00 $0.00

PR0066 $380,773.81 $380,773.81 $0.00 $0.00

PR0290 $2,831.53 $2,831.53 $0.00 $0.00

$401,741.59 $401,741.59 $0.00 $0.00

Norfolk Power Equipment, Inc.

PO Number Purchase Order Total  MBE   WBE   VBE   

PR0254 $105,161.98 $0.00 $105,161.98 $0.00

PR0246 $14,556.25 $0.00 $14,556.25 $0.00

$119,718.23 $0.00 $119,718.23 $0.00

NoUVIR Lighting Corporation

PO Number Purchase Order Total  MBE   WBE   VBE   

PR0165 $37,058.91 $0.00 $37,058.91 $0.00

$37,058.91 $0.00 $37,058.91 $0.00

One Way Development, Inc.

PO Number Purchase Order Total  MBE   WBE   VBE   

PR0282 $4,522.23 $4,522.23 $0.00 $0.00

$4,522.23 $4,522.23 $0.00 $0.00

PC Innovations of Rochester Inc.

PO Number Purchase Order Total  MBE   WBE   VBE   

PR0189 $9,170.00 $0.00 $9,170.00 $0.00

$9,170.00 $0.00 $9,170.00 $0.00

Service Central Inc.

PO Number Purchase Order Total  MBE   WBE   VBE   

PR0292 $2,376.25 $0.00 $2,376.25 $0.00

PR0157 $36,469.81 $0.00 $36,469.81 $0.00

PR0208 $2,428.26 $0.00 $2,428.26 $0.00

Monday, July 06, 2015 Page 3 of 4



PR0138 $88,667.42 $0.00 $88,667.42 $0.00

PR0215 $5,688.66 $0.00 $5,688.66 $0.00

PR0240 $22,353.17 $0.00 $22,353.17 $0.00

PR0164 $10,475.24 $0.00 $10,475.24 $0.00

$168,458.81 $0.00 $168,458.81 $0.00

Solutions 4 Networks, Inc.

PO Number Purchase Order Total  MBE   WBE  VBE   

PR0078 $11,870.17 $0.00 $11,870.17 $0.00

PR0094 $38,782.20 $0.00 $38,782.20 $0.00

PR0095 $1,478.56 $0.00 $1,478.56 $0.00

PR0119 $27,949.92 $0.00 $27,949.92 $0.00

PR0118 $72,959.29 $0.00 $72,959.29 $0.00

$153,040.14 $0.00 $153,040.14 $0.00

Southwest Surveillance Systems

PO Number Purchase Order Total  MBE   WBE  VBE   

PR0067A $2,135,550.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,135,550.00

$2,135,550.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,135,550.00

$5,381,555.68Grand Total $406,263.82Grand Total $2,815,176.80Grand Total $2,160,115.06Grand Total

Total Wennsoft 
Commitments To Date

$15,072,173 3% 19% 14%

MBE   WBE  VBE   

Monday, July 06, 2015 Page 4 of 4



 

 

 

 
 
 

Amended Small Business Impact Statement 
 
 
 The Massachusetts Gaming Commission (“Commission”) hereby files this amended 
small business impact statement in accordance with G.L. c.30A, §5 relative to the proposed new 
regulations in 205 CMR 139.00: Continuing Disclosure and Reporting Obligations of Gaming 
Licensees, for which a public hearing was held on April 23, 2015.  These regulations were 
developed as part of the process of promulgating regulations governing the operation of gaming 
establishments in the Commonwealth.  These regulations govern the requirements and 
procedures for continuing disclosure and reporting of financial and governing documents by the 
gaming licensees.  The proposed regulations are largely directed by G.L. c.23K, §§ 5, 21, 23, 28, 
29, and 65. 
 

These new regulations apply directly to the gaming licensees.  Accordingly, these 
regulations are unlikely to have an impact on small businesses.  In accordance with G.L. c. 30A, 
§5, the Commission offers the following responses on whether any of the following methods of 
reducing the impact of the proposed regulation on small businesses would hinder achievement of 
the purpose of the proposed regulation:  

 
1. Establishing less stringent compliance or reporting requirements for small businesses: 

 
  As a general matter, no small businesses will be impacted by these regulations.   
  Accordingly, there are no less stringent compliance or reporting requirements for  
  small businesses.    

 
2. Establishing less stringent schedules or deadlines for compliance or reporting 

requirements for small businesses: 
 
  There are no schedules or deadlines for compliance or reporting requirements for  
  small businesses created by these regulations.    
  

3. Consolidating or simplifying compliance or reporting requirements for small 
businesses: 

 
  There are no compliance or reporting requirements for small businesses.   
 

4. Establishing performance standards for small businesses to replace design or 
operational standards required in the proposed legislation: 

 
  There are no performance standards for small businesses to replace design or  
  operational standards required in the proposed regulations.     



 
 

 
 

 
5. An analysis of whether the proposed regulation is likely to deter or encourage the 

formation of new businesses in the Commonwealth: 
 
 M.G.L. c.23K was enacted to create a new industry in the Commonwealth and to 
 promote and grow local small businesses and the tourism industry, including the 
 development of new small businesses.  The proposed regulations are designed to 
 effectuate those intentions and growth. Furthermore, regulations of this sort are 
 mandated by statute and common in the gaming industry. 
 

6. Minimizing adverse impact on small businesses by using alternative regulatory 
methods: 

 
  There are no alternative regulatory methods to minimize adverse impacts on small 
  businesses. 

 
 

 
      Massachusetts Gaming Commission 
      By:  
 
 
      _____________________________ 
      Cecelia M. Porché 
      Paralegal/Legal Division  
 
 
Dated: 
 
 
 
 



 

205 CMR:  MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION 
205 CMR 139.00:  CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AND REPORTING OBLIGATIONS OF 

GAMING LICENSEES 
 
Section 
 
139.01:  Access to premises and production of records 
139.02:  Non-disclosure agreements 
139.03:  Fiscal year 
139.04:  Reports and information to be filed with the commission 
139.05:  Reports and information to be compiled and maintained by the gaming licensee 
139.06: Quarterly report 
139.07: Annual audit and other reports 
139.08: Audit of gaming licensee operations by commission  
139.09:  Capital expenditure plan 
 
139.01:  Access to premises and production of records 
 
The commission shall have access to, and may inspect the premises of the gaming establishment 
and/or request the production of records of the gaming licensee in accordance with 205 CMR 
142.00: Regulatory Monitoring and Inspections.   

 
139.02:  Non-disclosure agreements 
 
All documents submitted by a gaming licensee or obtained by the commission in accordance 
with 205 CMR 139.00 shall be deemed to have been submitted pursuant to a gaming related 
investigation to ensure compliance with M.G.L. c. 23K and 205 C MR, adherence to the 
principles articulated in M.G.L. c.23K, §1, and/or to ensure the ongoing suitability of gaming 
licensees in Massachusetts.  Accordingly, pursuant to M.G.L. c.23K, §21(a)(7) any information 
or reports, or parts thereof, that are required to be filed or otherwise submitted to or obtained by 
the commission, the IEB, or their respective agents, in accordance with 205 CMR 139.00 that 
contain material or information that the gaming licensee considers a t rade secret or believes 
would be detrimental to the gaming licensee if it w ere made public may be identified as 
confidential by the gaming licensee.  Pursuant to M.G.L. c.23K or 205 CMR 139.00 the gaming 
licensee may request that the commission enter into a written nondisclosure agreement under the 
terms of which the commission agrees not to release the specified material or information 
publicly, in response to a request for public records or otherwise, and will assert the statutory 
exemption, M.G.L. c.4, §7(26)(a), and/or any other applicable exemptions, and withhold the 
applicable materials in response to any request for such record or information.  The agreement 
may provide for coverage for specific materials or information, or categories of materials or 
information, which will be, or are likely to be, submitted to or obtained by the commission on 
more than one occasion.  A request for a non-disclosure agreement shall be on a form provided 
by the commission.  Upon review of the gaming licensee’s request, the commission may execute 
such an agreement in its discretion.  In lieu of withholding a record in its entirety, the gaming 
licensee and the commission may agree that that the material or information be publicly released 
in a redacted form, an aggregated fashion, or in other agreed upon manner.  Nothing contained in 



 

2 
 

205 CMR 139.02, nor  in an executed non-disclosure agreement, shall be construed so as to 
prevent the commission from making use of any information or material as part of an 
investigation, disciplinary matter, or otherwise as deemed necessary by the commission.       
 
 
139.03:  Fiscal year 
 
The gaming licensee shall establish a fiscal year for accounting purposes and shall advise the 
commission of such.  
 
 
139.04:  Reports and information to be filed with the commission 
 
The following reports and information shall be filed with the commission, or its designee, in the 
manner and time provided: 
 
(1) Pursuant to M.G.L. c. 23K, § 21(a)(12), a detailed annual, and at other times as directed by 

the commission, statistical report on the number, job titles, benefits, race, gender, veteran 
status, and salaries of employees hired and retained in employment at the gaming 
establishment. 
 

(2) Pursuant to M.G.L. c. 23K, § 21(a)(23), on a quarterly basis, a detailed statistical report, on 
the number, gender, race, and veteran status of individuals hired to perform labor as part of 
the construction of the gaming establishment.  For purposes of this paragraph, the term 
“construction” shall, unless the context clearly requires otherwise, include all major stages of 
design and construction; including all permitting and approvals, design deliverables, site 
preparation, foundation, structure, plumbing, electrical, mechanical, exterior finish and 
fenestration, long lead items, insulation, interior finish and furnishings and landscaping, 
building commissioning and commissioning of gaming equipment and information 
technology systems; and shall further include the  initial and subsequent periods in which any 
structures upon a  licensee’s gaming establishment are altered, converted, fitted out, 
commissioned, renovated, repaired, maintained, demolished, decommissioned, or dismantled 
by through utilization of net gaming revenue  in accordance with the capital expenditure plan 
under 139.09. 

 
(3) Pursuant to M.G.L. c. 23K, § 21(a)(24), a detailed annual, and at other times as directed by 

the commission, statistical report on the total dollar amounts contracted with and actually 
paid to minority business enterprises, women business enterprises and veteran business 
enterprises in:  

 
(a) Design contracts;  
(b) Construction contracts (as the term ‘construction’ is defined in accordance with 205 

CMR 139.04(2)); and 
(c) Contracts for every good and service procured by the gaming establishment.  

 



 

3 
 

The annual statistical report shall also identify the amounts so contracted as a percentage of 
the total dollar amounts contracted with and actually paid to all firms.   

 
(4) Pursuant to M.G.L. c. 23K, §23(a) on an annual basis, and at other times as directed by the 

commission, a report explicitly stating the gaming licensee’s progress on meeting each of the 
stated goals and stipulations put forth in its RFA-2 application, including compliance with 
any executed impacted live entertainment venue agreements; 

(5) Reports prescribed in accordance with 205 CMR 138.05(2) relative to registered and licensed 
employees; 

(6) Daily, monthly, and annual gross gaming revenue remittance and reconciliation reports 
required in accordance with 205 CMR 140.00: Gross Gaming Revenue Tax Remittance and 
Reporting.  Monthly gross gaming revenue reports shall include statistics relative to the 
drop/handle, win or loss, and win or loss percentage relative to slot machines played in the 
gaming establishment for the month.  The commission shall make the monthly slot machine 
payback statistics publicly available on its official website. 

(7) Promptly upon discovery, the gaming licensee shall notify the commission’s on-site gaming 
agent and/or member of the Gaming Enforcement Unit assigned to the gaming establishment 
of any violation, or suspected violation, of M.G.L. c. 23K, 205 CMR, and/or any gaming 
related law and file any requested written report. 

(8) By the 10th day of each month, an underage person report with the IEB containing the 
information required in accordance with 205 CMR 150.05: Reporting Requirements Related 
to Minors and Underage Persons.  

(9) A gaming licensee shall promptly notify the commission’s on-site gaming agent and/or 
member of the Gaming Enforcement Unit assigned to the gaming establishment, if an 
individual on the voluntary self-exclusion list established in accordance with 205 CMR 
133.00: Voluntary Self-Exclusion is found in the gaming area of a gaming establishment or 
any area in which pari-mutuel or simulcasting wagers are placed. 

(10) Any declared event of default related to any debt obligation maintained by the gaming 
licensee, affiliate, holding company or intermediary company thereof shall be immediately 
reported to the commission, in writing, along with any plans to address or cure such default. 

(11) Quarterly reports of the gaming licensee in accordance with 205 CMR 139.06.  
(12) If the gaming licensee elects to establish a capital expenditure plan in accordance with 

M.G.L. c.23K, §21(a)(4) and 205 CMR 139.09, in lieu of making annual improvements to its 
gaming establishment, such plan shall be submitted to the commission for approval and 
updates included in the gaming licensee’s quarterly report in accordance with 205 CMR 
139.06. 

(13) Documents and other materials required to be submitted in accordance with the terms of the 
gaming licensee’s gaming license.   

(14) A gaming licensee’s system of internal controls approved in accordance with 205 CMR 
138.02, amendments thereto, and any documents or information required to be submitted in 
accordance with the approved system of internal controls.  
 

 
139.05:  Reports and information to be compiled and maintained by the gaming licensee 

The following reports and information shall be compiled and maintained by the gaming licensee, 



 

4 
 

or where applicable the gaming licensee’s holding company, intermediary company, qualifying 
subsidiary, or entity qualifier thereof, in the manner provided as follows or as required by the 
governing body responsible for the oversight of the subject information, and shall be made 
available and provided upon request by the commission, or its designee: 
 
(1) Up to date records regarding the business structure, capital structure, and controlling interest 

of the gaming licensee, where applicable, and the gaming licensee’s holding company, 
intermediary company, qualifying subsidiary, or entity qualifier thereof, including, at a 
minimum:  

 
(a) Certified copies of incorporation and formation documents and any amendments thereto; 
(b) By-laws, shareholders agreements, governing and/or operating agreements or 

documents, partnership agreement, intercompany transactions, joint venture agreements, 
merger and acquisition agreements, and other relevant corporate documents.; 

(c) Current listing of officers, directors, members, partners; 
(d) Minutes of all meetings of shareholders; 
(e) Detailed records regarding all record and beneficial owners of any class of non-publicly 

traded securities, including both equity and debt securities, issued by the gaming 
licensee, its holding company, intermediary company, qualifying subsidiary or entity 
qualifier thereof, including the names and addresses of record and beneficial owners of 
such equity or debt securities, date(s) acquired and the number of equity securities held 
or face amount of debt securities held, as applicable; 

(f) Detailed records regarding all record and beneficial owners of 5% or more of any class 
of publicly traded securities, including both equity and debt securities, issued by the 
gaming licensee, its holding company, intermediary company, qualifying subsidiary or 
entity qualifier thereof,  i ncluding the names and addresses of record and beneficial 
owners of such equity or debt securities held in street name or other name, date(s) 
acquired and the number of equity securities held or face amount of debt securities held, 
as applicable; 

(g) Detailed records regarding distributions to equity holders holding 5% or more of the 
entity; 

(h) Detailed records regarding all remuneration paid to officers, directors, partners and 
members; 

(i) (for the gaming licensee only) Detailed records regarding all capital contributions; 
(j) (for the gaming licensee only) Detailed records regarding any equity transfers; 
(k) Essential details of any debt obligations including loans, covenants, borrowings, 

installment contracts, guarantees, leases, or any other debt; and 
(l) Any other records as the commission deems appropriate. 

 
 

(2) Copies of any securities filings submitted to federal, state, or other domestic or foreign 
securities regulatory authorities, regarding any of the securities, either in existence or 
proposed, including, but not limited to, United States Securities and Exchange Commission 
forms S-1, 8-K, 10-Q and 10-K, proxy or information statements and all registration 
statements filed by the gaming licensee, or holding company, intermediary company, 
qualifying subsidiary and entity qualifier thereof.  



 

5 
 

(3) Copies of any United States Securities and Exchange Commission Schedules 13D or 13G 
served upon t he gaming licensee, or holding company, intermediary company, qualifying 
subsidiary and entity qualifier thereof. 

(4) Copies of the federal and state tax returns and any related forms filed by the gaming licensee, 
and its holding company, intermediary company, qualifying subsidiary or entity qualifier 
thereof. 

(5) The system of financial accounting, in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, to be utilized by the gaming licensee designed to ensure the accurate recording 
and reporting its assets, liabilities, equity, revenue and expenses. The gaming licensee’s 
system of financial accounting shall provide a level of detail so as to allow it to accurately 
compute gross gaming revenue in accordance with M.G.L.  c.23K, §2 and 205 CMR 140.02, 
and to report the gaming licensee’s drop, win, and hold percentage for each form of gaming 
activity, the value of complimentary goods or services and promotional gaming credits issued 
during the accounting period, and any other information necessary to allow the commission 
to understand the gaming licensee’s results of operations.  The gaming licensee shall 
maintain detailed information and documentation to support all amounts reported to the 
commission as being the gaming licensee’s assets, liabilities, equity, revenue and expenses.      

                                                                                      
(6) Data derived from the gaming licensee’s player card/rewards card/loyalty program, cashless 

wagering system, player tracking software, or other similar information systems including: 
 
(a) Pursuant to M.G.L. c.23K, §§ 21(a)(15) and 29, the amount of money spent and lost on 

gaming (excluding the value of promotional gaming credits played, but including any 
amounts that were subject to discretionary discounting for marketing or other similar 
purposes) by patrons at the gaming establishment who have been issued a player card or 
rewards card or who participated in a cashless wagering system, aggregated by, at a 
minimum, the patron’s age, gender and home zip code provided by the patron and 
compiled on an annual basis or as otherwise directed by the commission. 

(b) Pursuant to St. 2011, c. 194, §97, information, compiled by year, on player 
characteristics for patrons of the gaming establishment including, but not limited to, 
gender, age and region of residence, player behavior including, but not limited to, 
frequency of play, length of play, speed of play, denomination of play, amounts wagered 
at the gaming establishment and, if applicable, number of lines or hands played and 
characteristics of games played including, but not limited to, reel configuration, return-
to-player or RTP, volatility index and denomination.  

 
(7) Pursuant to M.G.L. c.23K, §28(b), a quarterly report, covering all complimentary services 

offered or engaged in by the gaming licensee during the immediately preceding quarter.  The 
reports shall identify regulated complimentary services or items including, but not limited to, 
food and beverage, hotel and travel accommodations, and promotional gaming credits.  The 
reports shall be aggregated by, at a minimum, the costs of the complimentary services or 
items, and the number of people who received each service or item for the quarter. The report 
shall also document any services or items valued in excess of $2,000 that were provided to 
patrons, including detailed reasons as to why they were provided.  Valuation shall be 
performed in accordance with M.G.L. c.23K, §28(c).   

(8) The gaming licensee’s Disbursement Report relative to vendors in accordance with 205 CMR 



 

6 
 

138.06(2); 
(9) Counter check information maintained by the gaming licensee in accordance with 205 CMR 

138.43(2)(l)-(n). 
(10) An annual business plan for the gaming licensee, which will include financial projections 

in a format as prescribed by the commission no l ater than 30 d ays prior to the 
commencement of the fiscal year. 

(11) A compliance plan and any amendments thereto, for the gaming licensee and its holding 
company or intermediary company outlining the practices and protocols implemented, or to 
be implemented, designed to ensure compliance with all applicable federal or state laws.    

(12) Copies of the minutes of all board of directors or equivalent governing authority meetings 
and committee meetings including the audit and compliance committee meeting minutes 
pursuant to 205 CMR 138.04(2)(g) and (h), for the gaming licensee or holding company or 
intermediary company thereof.  The commission may request such minutes in draft form 
followed by final minutes when formally approved.  Where applicable, the commission may 
request that it be provided access to only those portions of the minutes that relate to the 
gaming licensee and not to the parent or holding company as a whole or to other properties 
owned or operated by the parent or holding company.   

 
139.06:  Quarterly reports 
 

(1) On a quarterly basis, the gaming licensee shall create a report that provides a continuing view 
of the gaming licensee’s financial position including key performance measures, narrative 
commentary on operating results, and where applicable, the capital reserve account 
contributions made in accordance with the plan submitted pursuant to 205 CMR 139.09.  The 
quarterly report shall be attested to by any two of the following: the Chief Executive Officer, 
Chief Gaming Executive, Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer, Financial Director, Controller, 
or their functional equivalent. 
 

(2) The quarterly report required in accordance with 205 CMR 139.06(1) shall be accompanied 
by a statement attested to by  the gaming licensee’s Chief Financial Officer, or their 
functional equivalent, that the gaming licensee satisfies the following:    

 
(a) It has maintained for the previous quarter, and has the ability to maintain for the 

upcoming quarter, a gaming bankroll or equivalent provisions adequate to pay 
winning wagers to gaming patrons when due.   

(b) It has paid in the previous quarter and has the ability to pay when due all local, state 
and federal taxes, including the tax on g ross gaming revenues imposed by M.G.L. 
c.23K, §55 and any fees imposed under M.G.L. c.23K or 205 CMR. 

(c) It has the ability to make annual capital expenditures to its gaming establishment in a 
minimum aggregate amount equal to 3.5 pe r cent of the net gaming revenues derived 
from the establishment or in accordance with a multi-year capital expenditure plan 
approved by the commission pursuant to M.G.L. c.23K, §21(a)(4) and 205 CMR 139.09.  

(d) It has the ability to pay, exchange, refinance or extend debts, including long-term and 
short-term principal and interest and capital lease obligations, which will mature or 
otherwise come due and payable during the license term, or to otherwise manage 
such debts and any default with respect to such debts.   



 

7 
 

 
139.07: Annual audit and other reports  
 
(1) On an annual basis a g aming licensee shall, at its own expense, cause an audit to be 

prepared by an independent certified public accountant of its financial statements 
relevant to the operation of its Massachusetts gaming establishment. The gaming 
licensee may satisfy this requirement by submission of the audit of the consolidated 
financial statement, including applicable notes, of the gaming licensee’s holding 
company or intermediary company provided that such audit is accompanied by a 
supplemental information, appendix, or other financial information section specific to 
the gaming licensee which includes an audited financial statement containing, at a 
minimum, a balance sheet, income statement, and a s tatement of cash flows for the 
gaming licensee. In either event, the independent certified public accountant shall attest 
to the financial condition of the gaming licensee, disclose whether the accounts, records 
and control procedures examined are maintained by the gaming licensee as required by 
M.G.L. c.23K and 205 CMR, and opine as to whether there are material weaknesses in 
the gaming licensee’s system of internal controls.   
 
In the event that the independent certified public accountant makes recommendations to 
improve the system of internal controls, or to increase the gaming licensee’s level of 
compliance, the gaming licensee’s Chief Financial Officer shall respond, in writing, to 
the recommendations of the independent certified public accountant and provide the 
commission with a copy of its response.     

 
(2) To ensure the independence of the annual audit, at least every five years a gaming licensee, 

whose holding company or intermediary company is not publicly traded, shall rotate the lead 
(or coordinating) audit partner having primary responsibility for the audit, and the audit 
partner responsible for reviewing the audit.  For a gaming licensee, whose holding company 
or intermediary company is publicly traded, lead (or coordinating) audit partner rotation shall 
comply with the requirements of federal law, including the requirements of the United States 
Securities and Exchange Commission and/or the Public Company Accounting Oversight 
Board. 
    

(3) In the event the annual audited financial statements differ from financial statements 
maintained by the gaming licensee throughout the year, the gaming licensee shall 
provide a summary of these differences as part of the annual audit. 

 
(4) The annual audit and associated statements required in accordance with 205 C MR 

139.07(1) shall be filed with the commission within 3 months following the end of the 
quarter following the end of the gaming licensee’s fiscal year.  

 
(5) In cases where a gaming licensee’s parent or holding company is not publicly traded, in 

the event the gaming licensee’s independent certified public accountant shall resign or 
be removed as the gaming licensee’s principal accountant or auditor, the gaming licensee 
shall submit a written report to the commission within 20 da ys of such resignation or 
removal, signed by its Chief Financial Officer and Chair of its Audit Committee, 



 

8 
 

outlining the cause or nature of the resignation or removal, stating whether the 
resignation or removal was related to material differences between the parties as to 
financial statement presentation issues, disclosures, or the adequacy of the gaming 
licensee’s system of internal accounting control and, if so, a complete and detailed 
description of the differences for consideration by the commission.  The gaming licensee 
shall submit as an exhibit to this report a letter from the former independent certified 
public accountant stating whether he or she agrees with the statements made by the 
gaming licensee in the report submitted to the commission.  

 
In cases where a gaming licensee’s parent or holding company is publicly traded, the 
gaming licensee shall file with the commission copies of such information and 
documents as are required to be filed with the United States Securities and Exchange 
Commission and/or the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board upon the 
resignation or removal of the publicly traded holding company’s independent certified 
public accountant. 

 
(6) To the extent possible, any adjustments resulting from the annual audit required in 

accordance with 205 CMR 139.07 shall be recorded in the accounting records of the year 
to which the adjustment relates.  In the event the adjustments were not reflected in the 
gaming licensee’s quarterly report for the fourth quarter and the commission concludes 
the adjustments are significant, a revised quarterly report for the fourth quarter may be 
required from the gaming licensee.  The revised filing shall be due within 30 calendar 
days after notification to the gaming licensee, unless an extension is granted by the 
commission.  

 
139.08: Audit of gaming licensee operations by commission  
 
In accordance with M.G.L. c.23K, §65 t he commission shall audit on an annual basis, and at 
other times the commission, or the IEB, determines necessary the accounts, programs, activities, 
and functions of a gaming licensee and/or any aspect of the gaming establishment and 
compliance with any provision of the gaming licensee’s system of internal controls approved in 
accordance with 205 CMR 138.02. To conduct the audit, authorized officers and employees of 
the commission shall be given access by the gaming licensee to such accounts at reasonable 
times and may require the production of books, documents, vouchers and other records relating 
to any matter within the scope of the audit and as otherwise provided in accordance with 205 
CMR 142: Regulatory Monitoring and Inspections; provided however, that a gaming licensee’s 
tax returns will not be audited by the commission.  All audits shall be conducted in accordance 
with generally accepted auditing standards established by the American Institute of Certified 
Public Accountants and the standards established by the Public Company Accounting Oversight 
Board.  In any audit report of the accounts, funds, programs, activities and functions of a gaming 
licensee issued by the commission containing adverse or critical audit results, the commission 
may require a response, in writing, to the audit results. Such a response shall be forwarded to the 
commission within 15 days of notification by the commission. Where possible, efforts will be 
made not to audit areas that were the subject of, and satisfactorily addressed by, the annual audit 
required in accordance with 205 CMR 139.07.  
 



 

9 
 

Prior to submitting the requisite report required in accordance with M.G.L. c.23K, §65 to the 
clerks of the house of representatives and the senate, the gaming licensee shall be offered an 
opportunity to review the commission’s report and make any requests allowed in accordance 
with 205 CMR 139.02.  The commission may modify the information contained in the report to 
address the concern, but shall not adjust the findings of the audit.   

 
139.09:  Capital expenditure plan 
1) For purposes of 205 CMR 139.09, net gaming revenue means gross gaming revenue as 

calculated in accordance with 205 CMR 140.02, minus taxes remitted to the commonwealth 
in accordance with  205 CMR 140.03. 

2) Pursuant to M.G.L. c.23K, § 21(a) (4), A gaming licensee shall annually make, or cause to be 
made, capital expenditures to its gaming establishment in a minimum aggregate amount 
equal to 3.5 per cent of the net annual gaming revenues derived from the gaming 
establishment; provided, however, that a gaming licensee may make capital expenditures in 
an amount less than 3.5 per cent per year as part of a multi-year capital expenditure plan 
approved by the commission.    If the gaming licensee intends to make capital expenditures 
as part of a multi-year capital plan, the plan shall be submitted to the commission for 
approval at least 3 months prior to the end of the first fiscal year included in the multi-year 
plan.  A multi-year capital plan must, at a minimum, provide for the establishment of, and 
annual contribution to, a capital reserve account.  Over the term of the plan, the total 
expenditures shall equal or exceed 3.5 per cent of the net annual gaming revenues derived 
from the gaming establishment during the covered term of years unless good cause is 
demonstrated to the contrary by licensee 

 
REGULATORY AUTHORITY 
 
 205 CMR 139: M.G.L. c. 23K, §§4(28), 4(37), 21(a)(4), 5 



 
 

 
 

 
 

      JED M. NOSAL 
         __________ 
 
 Direct Dial:  617.856.8272 
 Direct Fax:  617.289.0708 
         __________ 
 
E-Mail: jnosal@brownrudnick.com 
   http://www.brownrudnick.com 

July 20, 2015 

VIA EMAIL 

 
 

Massachusetts Gaming Commission 
84 State Street 
Boston, MA 02109 
 

 

 
 

RE: Blue Tarp reDevelopment Supplemental Comments on 205 CMR 139.00 
 

To Whom It May Concern: 

In response to the Massachusetts Gaming Commission’s (the “Commission”) revised draft of 205 CMR 
139.00, Continuing Disclosure and Reporting Obligations of Gaming Licensees, Blue Tarp reDevelopment 
LLC (“MGM Springfield”), submits the following supplemental comments on the revised draft regulation to 
the Commission.   

At the outset, MGM Springfield thanks Commission staff for its work on the revised draft of 205 CMR 
139.00.  In particular, the revised regulation's confidentiality provision and process provides appropriate 
protection for commercially sensitive records and other proprietary information to ensure the efficient 
exchange of information between the Commission and licensees to ensure continuous compliance with 
Chapter 23K.  Likewise, the revised regulation's reliance on statutory requirements as the basis for report 
filing while requiring other material records be maintained by the licensee for inspection and production if 
necessary greatly reduces potential regulatory burden and the automatic production of commercially sensitive 
materials regardless of need.  Finally, MGM Springfield also recognizes the Commission's efforts to ensure 
coordination of multiple audits required under the Gaming Act and Commission's regulations to ensure no 
duplication of efforts.   

Notwithstanding these important and meaningful changes, there are some additional amendments set forth 
below and included in the attached redline that MGM Springfield requests that the Commission make to 
clarify certain sections and better align the proposed regulation with records maintained by licensees and their 
holding companies.   

Comments on 205 CMR 139.00: Continuing Disclosure and Reporting Obligations of Gaming Licensees 

205 CMR 139.02 

This new section creates a process for seeking a nondisclosure agreement (NDA) under the G.L. c. 23K, § 
21(a)7 for "material or information that the gaming licensee considers a trade secret or believes would be 



 

Massachusetts Gaming Commission 
Comments on Revised MGC Regulations 205 CMR 139.00 
June 20, 2015 
Page 2 

  

 

 

detrimental to the gaming licensee if it were made public".  The regulation requires that such an NDA be filed 
"prior to" the submission of such records potentially foreclosing the flexibility to execute an omnibus, 
standing NDA between the Commission and each gaming licensee.  The NDA can be drafted to include the 
specific requirement for submitting the records under its provision including how the records should be 
transmitted, marked for confidentiality purposes and maintained by the Commission.  Rather than being tied 
to specific requirements in a regulation, the suggested edit provides the MGC and the gaming licensees with 
regulatory flexibility to amend/modify the NDA as necessary and avoid having to file multiple copies of the 
same agreement. 

205 CMR 139.04(10) 

This section requires a licensee to provide the Commission with records pertaining to defaults including a 
"potential default".  Records or information pertaining to a "potential default" will be difficult to identify and 
track across multiple entities including the gaming licensee, its holding company and affiliates which may 
involve a significant number of financial instruments with different provisions, notices and remedies in 
connection with events of default.  Indeed, these were some of the grounds discussed with Commission staff 
in eliminating a similar requirement as a condition of MGM Springfield's Gaming License as approved by the 
Commission.  See Decision to Award License to Blue Tarp reDevelopment LLC, Attachment A, section 20(d).  
Moreover, the license condition only applies to the Blue Tarp as the licensee, and MGM Resorts 
International.  See Attachment A, section 20(r).  The proposed revision makes the revised regulation 
consistent with Blue Tarp's license condition by striking "potential default" and "affiliate" from this section. 

205 CMR 139.05 

This section requires the licensee to maintain certain records and reports for inspection by the Commission. 
The introductory paragraph of this section should clarify that it applies to the licensee or parent or holding 
company, intermediary company, qualifying subsidiary and entity qualifier.  The suggested revision 
recognizes that the gaming licensee may not have access to sensitive documents maintained by its parent or 
holding company, intermediary company, qualifying subsidiary or entity qualifier.  The suggested revision is 
in no manner intended to limit the Commission’s access to such documents but rather clarify its application to 
a parent or holding company, intermediary company, qualifying subsidiary and entity qualifier.  

 

205 CMR 139.05(1)(d) 

 

This section requires maintaining minutes of all meetings of shareholders, directors or members.  The 
suggested revision is to correct a redundancy with Section 139.05(10) which requires the licensee to maintain 
records related to meetings of directors or members.  

205 CMR 139.05(1)(e) 

This section requires that a licensee or parent or holding company, intermediary company, qualifying 
subsidiary and entity qualifier thereof maintain detailed records regarding all record and beneficial owners of 
any class of non-publicly traded securities.  The suggested revision adds a new provision that recognizes the 
differences in the information available for non-publicly traded securities as compared to publicly traded 
securities (See Section 139.05(1)(f) below).  In addition, the reference to “equity securities” in this section 
recognizes that an owner entity could be other than a corporation.   

 

 



 

Massachusetts Gaming Commission 
Comments on Revised MGC Regulations 205 CMR 139.00 
June 20, 2015 
Page 3 

  

 

 

205 CMR 139.05(1)(f) 

This section requires the licensee or parent or holding company, intermediary company, qualifying subsidiary 
and entity qualifier thereof to maintain detailed records regarding all record and beneficial owners holders of 
publicly traded securities.  This section is also revised to cover both public equity and debt securities.  The 
reference to “equity securities” also recognizes that an owner entity could be other than a corporation.  
Moreover, the proposed 2% threshold should be changed to 5%.  Only 5% or greater equity holders must 
disclose their identity under federal securities law.  Records regarding ownership under the 5% threshold are 
not maintained in the normal course of business and are not readily available.   

205 CMR 139.05(3) 

This new section requires that a licensee or parent or holding company, intermediary company, qualifying 
subsidiary and entity qualifier thereof maintain certain schedules filed with the Security and Exchange 
Commission (SEC) including Schedules 13D and 13G.  These schedules are required to be filed with the SEC 
when a person or group of persons acquires beneficial ownership of more than 5% of a voting class of a 
company’s equity securities.  To the extent these schedules are served upon the gaming licensee or parent or 
holding company, intermediary company, qualifying subsidiary and entity qualifier thereof, they will be 
maintained under this provision.   

205 CMR 139.05(11) 

This section requires a gaming licensee to maintain a compliance plan.  Rather than creating a separate 
requirement or definition for compliance plans, this section should reference the compliance plan as approved 
as part of a licensee’s internal control plan as required by 205 CMR 138.04(2)(g).     

205 CMR 139.05(12) 

 

This section requires a licensee or parent or holding company, intermediary company, qualifying subsidiary 
and entity qualifier thereof to maintain copies of the minutes of all board of directors or equivalent governing 
authority meetings and committee meetings including the audit and compliance committee meeting minutes.  
This section should be amended to clarify that the production of draft minutes in cases where final minutes 
are not yet approved does not create a separate obligation to maintain all copies of draft minutes.   
 
205 CMR 139.07(2) and (5) 

 
Section 139.07 sets forth an annual audit requirement of the financial statements relevant to the operation of 
the Massachusetts gaming establishment.   Subsection 2 of this section requires the rotating of the lead audit 
partner every fives years and, in subsection 5, requires a written report to the commission within 20 days of of 
the resignation or removal of the Company's independent auditor.  Both these sections are revised to 
differentiate between privately held companies and publically traded companies which are required to meet 
these obligations under federal securities law.  The proposed revisions to these sections will prevent any 
potential for conflicts with federal law while maintaining the auditor independence and reporting 
requirements.   
  



 

Massachusetts Gaming Commission 
Comments on Revised MGC Regulations 205 CMR 139.00 
June 20, 2015 
Page 4 

  

 

 

 
Thank you for your attention to this matter.   

Sincerely, 
 
BLUE TARP REDEVELOPMENT LLC 

 

by its Attorneys, 
 
BROWN RUDNICK LLP 

 
 

Jed M. Nosal 
 
FOX ROTHSCHILD, LLP 

 

 

Patrick Madamba  
 
 
cc: Todd Grossman, Deputy General Counsel 
 John Ziemba, Ombudsman 



 

 

205 CMR:  MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION 
205 CMR 139.00:  CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AND REPORTING OBLIGATIONS OF 

GAMING LICENSEES 
 
Section 
 
139.01:  Access to premises and production of records 
139.02:  Non-disclosure agreements 
139.03:  Fiscal year 
139.04:  Reports and information to be filed with the commission 
139.05:  Reports and information to be compiled and maintained by the gaming licensee 
139.06: Quarterly report 
139.07: Annual audit and other reports 
139.08: Audit of gaming licensee operations by commission  
139.09:  Capital expenditure plan 
 
139.01:  Access to premises and production of records 
 
The commission shall have access to, and may inspect the premises of the gaming establishment 
and/or request the production of records of the gaming licensee in accordance with 205 CMR 
142.00: Regulatory Monitoring and Inspections.   

 
139.02:  Non-disclosure agreements 
 
All documents submitted by a gaming licensee or obtained by the commission in accordance 
with 205 CMR 139.00 shall be deemed to have been submitted pursuant to a gaming related 
investigation to ensure compliance with M.G.L. c. 23K and 205 CMR, adherence to the 
principles articulated in M.G.L. c.23K, §1, and/or to ensure the ongoing suitability of gaming 
licensees in Massachusetts.  Accordingly, pursuant to M.G.L. c.23K, §21(a)(7) any information 
or reports, or parts thereof, that areis required to be filed or otherwise submitted to or obtained by 
the commission, the IEB, or their respective agents, in accordance with 205 CMR 139.00 that 
contain material or information that the gaming licensee considers a trade secret or believes 
would be detrimental to the gaming licensee if it were made public may be identified as 
confidential by the gaming licensee.  Prior to filing or submitting such material or information 
Additionally, pursuant to M.G.L. c.23K or 205 CMR 139.00, athe gaming licensee may request 
that the commission enter into a written nondisclosure agreement under the terms of which the 
commission agrees not to release the subject specified material or information publicly, in 
response to a request for public records or otherwise, and will assert the statutory exemption, 
M.G.L. c.4, §7(26)(a), and/or any other applicable exemptions, and withhold the applicable 
materials in response to any request for such record or information.  A request for a non-
disclosure agreement shall be on a form provided by the commission.  Upon review of the 
gaming licensee’s request, the commission may execute such an agreement in its discretion.  In 
lieu of withholding a record in its entirety, the gaming licensee and the commission may agree 
that that the material or information be publicly released in a redacted form, an aggregated 
fashion, or in other agreed upon manner.  Nothing contained in 205 CMR 139.02, nor in an 
executed non-disclosure agreement, shall be construed so as to prevent the commission from 



 

2 

making use of any information or material as part of an investigation, disciplinary matter, or 
otherwise as deemed necessary by the commission.       
 
 
139.03:  Fiscal year 
 
The gaming licensee shall establish a fiscal year for accounting purposes and shall advise the 
commission of such.  
 
 
139.04:  Reports and information to be filed with the commission 
 
The following reports and information shall be filed with the commission, or its designee, in the 
manner and time provided: 
 
(1) Pursuant to M.G.L. c. 23K, § 21(a)(12), a detailed annual, and at other times as directed by 

the commission, statistical report on the number, job titles, benefits, race, gender, veteran 
status, and salaries of employees hired and retained in employment at the gaming 
establishment. 
 

(2) Pursuant to M.G.L. c. 23K, § 21(a)(23), on a quarterly basis, a detailed statistical report, on 
the number, gender, race, and veteran status and/or military history of individuals hired to 
perform labor as part of the construction of the gaming establishment. 

 
(3) Pursuant to M.G.L. c. 23K, § 21(a)(24), a detailed annual, and at other times as directed by 

the commission, statistical report on the total dollar amounts contracted with and actually 
paid to minority business enterprises, women business enterprises and veteran business 
enterprises in:  

 
(a) Design contracts;  
(b) Construction contracts; and 
(c) Contracts for every good and service procured by the gaming establishment.  

 
The annual statistical report shall also identify the amounts so contracted as a percentage of 
the total dollar amounts contracted with and actually paid to all firms.   

 
(4) Pursuant to M.G.L. c. 23K, § 23(a), on an annual basis, and at other times as directed by the 

commission, a report explicitly stating the gaming licensee’s progress on meeting each of the 
stated goals and stipulations put forth in its RFA-2 application, including compliance with 
any executed impacted live entertainment venue agreements.  

(5) Reports prescribed in accordance with 205 CMR 138.05(2) relative to registered and licensed 
employees; 

(6) Daily, monthly, and annual gross gaming revenue remittance and reconciliation reports 
required in accordance with 205 CMR 140.00: Gross Gaming Revenue Tax Remittance and 

Reporting.  Monthly gross gaming revenue reports shall include statistics relative to the 
drop/handle, win or loss, and win or loss percentage relative to slot machines played in the 



 

3 

gaming establishment for the month.  The commission shall make the monthly slot machine 
payback statistics publicly available on its official website. 

(7) Promptly upon discovery, the gaming licensee shall notify the commission’s on-site gaming 
agent and/or member of the Gaming Enforcement Unit assigned to the gaming establishment 
of any violation, or suspected violation, of M.G.L. c. 23K, 205 CMR, and/or any gaming 
related law and file any requested written report. 

(8) By the 10th day of each month, an underage person report with the IEB containing the 
information required in accordance with 205 CMR 150.05: Reporting Requirements Related 

to Minors and Underage Persons.  
(9) A gaming licensee shall promptly notify the commission’s on-site gaming agent and/or 

member of the Gaming Enforcement Unit assigned to the gaming establishment, if an 
individual on the voluntary self-exclusion list established in accordance with 205 CMR 
133.00: Voluntary Self-Exclusion is found in the gaming area of a gaming establishment or 
any area in which pari-mutuel or simulcasting wagers are placed. 

(10) Any declared event of default, or potential event of default, related to any debt obligation 
maintained by the gaming licensee, affiliate, or parent or holding company thereof shall be 
immediately reported to the commission, in writing, along with any plans to address or cure 
such default. 

(11) Quarterly reports of the gaming licensee in accordance with 205 CMR 139.06.  
(12) If the gaming licensee elects to establish a capital expenditure plan in accordance with  

205 CMR 139.09 in lieu of making annual improvements to its gaming establishment, such 
plan shall be submitted to the commission for approval and updates included in the gaming 
licensee’s quarterly report in accordance with 205 CMR 139.06. 
 

 
139.05:  Reports and information to be compiled and maintained by the gaming licensee 

The following reports and information shall be compiled and maintained by the gaming licensee 
or the gaming licensee’s parent or holding company, intermediary company, qualifying 
subsidiary or entity qualifier thereof, as applicable, in the manner provided as follows or as 
required by the governing body responsible for the oversight of the subject information, and shall 
be made available and provided upon request by the commission, or its designee: 
 
(1) Up to date records regarding the business structure, capital structure, and controlling interest 

of the gaming licensee, where applicable, and the gaming licensee’s parent or holding 
company, intermediary company, qualifying subsidiary or entity qualifier thereof including, 
at a minimum:  

 
(a) Certified copies of incorporation and formation documents and any amendments thereto; 
(b) By-laws, shareholders agreements, governing and/or operating agreements or 

documents, partnership agreement, intercompany transactions, joint venture agreements, 
merger and acquisition agreements, and other relevant corporate documents.; 

(c) Current listing of officers, directors, members, partners; 
(d) Minutes of all meetings of shareholders, directors or members; 
(d)(e) Detailed records regarding all record and beneficial owners of any class of non-

publicly traded securities, including both equity and debt securities, issued by the 



 

4 

gaming licensee, its parent or holding company, intermediary company, qualifying 
subsidiary or entity qualifier thereof, including the names and addresses of record and 
beneficial owners of such equity or debt securities, date(s) acquired and the number of 
equity securities held or face amount of debt securities held, as applicable;  

(e)(f) Detailed records regarding all record and beneficial owners holders of 5% or more 
of any  class of publicly traded securities, including both equitystocks and debt 
securitiesbonds, issued by the gaming licensee, itsany parent or holding company, 
intermediary company, qualifying subsidiary or entity qualifier thereof, or by any other 
affiliated entity which is required to qualify in connection with the gaming licensee’s 
gaming license, including the names and addresses of record and beneficial owners of 
such any shares of equity stock or debt securities held in street name or other name, 
where any beneficial owner has a beneficial interest in 2% or more of the outstanding 
shares of any class of stock, as well as the date(s) acquired and the number of equity 
securities shares of stock held or face amount of debt securities held, as applicable; 

(f)(g) Detailed records regarding distributions to equity holders holding 5% or more of 
the entity; 

(g)(h) Detailed records regarding all remuneration paid to officers, directors, partners 
and members; 

(h)(i) (for the gaming licensee only) Detailed records regarding all capital contributions; 
(i)(j) (for the gaming licensee only) Detailed records regarding any equity transfers; 
(j)(k) Essential details of any debt obligations including loans, covenants, borrowings, 

installment contracts, guarantees, leases, or any other debt; and 
(k)(l) Any other records as the commission deems appropriate. 

 
 

(2) Copies of any securities filings submitted to federal, state, or other domestic or foreign 
securities regulatory authorities, regarding any of the securities, either in existence or 
proposed, including, but not limited to, United States Securities and Exchange Commission 
forms S-1, 8-K, 10-Q and 10-K, proxy or information statements and all registration 
statements filed by the gaming licensee, or parent or holding company, intermediary 
company, qualifying subsidiary and entity qualifier thereof.  

(2)(3) Copies of any United States Securities and Exchange Commission Schedules 13D or 13G 
served upon the gaming licensee, or parent or holding company, intermediary company, 
qualifying subsidiary and entity qualifier thereof. 

(3)(4) Copies of the federal and state tax returns and any related forms filed by the gaming 
licensee, and its parent or holding company, intermediary company, qualifying subsidiary or 
entity qualifier thereof. 

(4)(5) The system of financial accounting, in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, to be utilized by the gaming licensee designed to ensure the accurate recording 
and reporting its assets, liabilities, equity, revenue and expenses. The gaming licensee’s 
system of financial accounting shall provide a level of detail so as to allow it to accurately 
compute gross gaming revenue in accordance with 205 CMR 140.02 and to report the 
gaming licensee’s drop, win, and hold percentage for each form of gaming activity, the value 
of complimentary goods or services and promotional gaming credits issued during the 
accounting period, and any other information necessary to allow the commission to 
understand the gaming licensee’s results of operations.  The gaming licensee shall maintain 



 

5 

detailed information and documentation to support all amounts reported to the commission as 
being the gaming licensee’s assets, liabilities, equity, revenue and expenses.  

(5)(6) Data derived from the gaming licensee’s player card/rewards card/loyalty program, 
cashless wagering system, player tracking software, or other similar information systems 
including: 
 
(a) Pursuant to M.G.L. c.23K, §§ 21(a)(15) and 29, the amount of money spent and lost on 

gaming (excluding the value of promotional gaming credits played, but including any 
amounts that were subject to discretionary discounting for marketing or other similar 
purposes) by patrons at the gaming establishment who have been issued a player card or 
rewards card or who participated in a cashless wagering system, aggregated by, at a 
minimum, the patron’s age, gender and home zip code provided by the patron and 
compiled on an annual basis or as otherwise directed by the commission. 

(b) Pursuant to St. 2011, c. 194, §97, information, compiled by year, on player 
characteristics for patrons of the gaming establishment including, but not limited to, 
gender, age and region of residence, player behavior including, but not limited to, 
frequency of play, length of play, speed of play, denomination of play, amounts wagered 
at the gaming establishment and, if applicable, number of lines or hands played and 
characteristics of games played including, but not limited to, reel configuration, return-
to-player or RTP, volatility index and denomination.  

 
(6)(7) Pursuant to M.G.L. c.23K, §28(b), a quarterly report, covering all complimentary 

services offered or engaged in by the gaming licensee during the immediately preceding 
quarter.  The reports shall identify regulated complimentary services or items including, but 
not limited to, food and beverage, hotel and travel accommodations, and promotional gaming 
credits.  The reports shall be aggregated by, at a minimum, the costs of the complimentary 
services or items, and the number of people who received each service or item for the 
quarter. The report shall also document any services or items valued in excess of $2,000 that 
were provided to patrons, including detailed reasons as to why they were provided.  
Valuation shall be performed in accordance with M.G.L. c.23K, §28(c).   

(7)(8) The gaming licensee’s Disbursement Report relative to vendors in accordance with 205 
CMR 138.06(2); 

(8)(9) Counter check information maintained by the gaming licensee in accordance with 205 
CMR 138.43(2)(l)-(n). 

(9)(10) An annual business plan for the gaming licensee, which will include financial projections 
in a format as prescribed by the commission no later than 30 days prior to the 
commencement of the fiscal year. 

(10)(11) A compliance plan, and any amendments thereto, as required to be maintained 
pursuant to 205 CMR 138.04(2)(g) _____ for the gaming licensee and its corporate parent or 
holding company outlining the practices and protocols implemented, or to be implemented, 
designed to ensure compliance with all applicable federal or state laws.    

(11)(12) Copies of the minutes of all board of directors or equivalent governing authority 
meetings and committee meetings including the audit and compliance committee meeting 
minutes pursuant to 205 CMR 138.04(2)(g) and (h), for the gaming licensee or parent or 
holding company thereof.  The commission may request the then current draft of any such 
minutes if final minutes are not available as of the date of any such request n draft form 



 

6 

followed by final minutes when formally approved.  Where applicable, the commission may 
request that it be provided access to only those portions of the minutes that relate to the 
gaming licensee and not to the parent or holding company as a whole or to other properties 
owned or operated by the parent or holding company.   

 
139.06:  Quarterly reports 
 

(1) On a quarterly basis, the gaming licensee shall create a report that provides a continuing view 
of the gaming licensee’s financial position including key performance measures, narrative 
commentary on operating results, and where applicable, the capital reserve account 
contributions made in accordance with the plan submitted pursuant to 205 CMR 139.09.  The 
quarterly report shall be attested to by any two of the following: the Chief Executive Officer, 
Chief Gaming Executive, Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer, Financial Director, Controller, 
or their functional equivalent. 
 

(2) The quarterly report required in accordance with 205 CMR 139.06(1) shall be accompanied 
by a statement attested to by  the gaming licensee’s Chief Financial Officer, or their 
functional equivalent, that the gaming licensee satisfies the following:    

 
(a) It has maintained for the previous quarter, and has the ability to maintain for the 

upcoming quarter, a gaming bankroll or equivalent provisions adequate to pay 
winning wagers to gaming patrons when due.   

(b) It has paid in the previous quarter and has the ability to pay when due all local, state 
and federal taxes, including the tax on gross gaming revenues imposed by M.G.L. 
c.23K, §55 and any fees imposed under M.G.L. c.23K or 205 CMR. 

(c) It has the ability to make annual capital expenditures to its gaming establishment in a 
minimum aggregate amount equal to 3.5 per cent of the net gaming revenues derived 
from the establishment or in accordance with a multi-year capital expenditure plan 
approved by the commission pursuant to 205 CMR 139.09.  

(d) It has the ability to pay, exchange, refinance or extend debts, including long-term and 
short-term principal and interest and capital lease obligations, which will mature or 
otherwise come due and payable during the license term, or to otherwise manage 
such debts and any default with respect to such debts.   

 
 
139.07: Annual audit and other reports  
 
(1) On an annual basis a gaming licensee shall, at its own expense, cause an audit to be 

prepared by an independent certified public accountant of its financial statements 
relevant to the operation of its Massachusetts gaming establishment. The gaming 
licensee may satisfy this requirement by submission of the audit of the consolidated 
financial statement, including applicable notes, of the gaming licensee’s parent or 
holding company provided that such audit is accompanied by a supplemental 
information, appendix, or other financial information section specific to the gaming 
licensee which includes an audited financial statement containing, at a minimum, a 
balance sheet, income statement, and a statement of cash flows for the gaming licensee. 



 

7 

In either event, the independent certified public accountant shall attest to the financial 
condition of the gaming licensee, disclose whether the accounts, records and control 
procedures examined are maintained by the gaming licensee as required by M.G.L. 
c.23K and 205 CMR, and opine as to whether there are material weaknesses in the 
gaming licensee’s system of internal controls.   
 
In the event that the independent certified public accountant makes recommendations to 
improve the system of internal controls, or to increase the gaming licensee’s level of 
compliance, the gaming licensee’s Chief Financial Officer shall respond, in writing, to 
the recommendations of the independent certified public accountant and provide the 
commission with a copy of its response.     

 
(2) To ensure the independence of the annual audit, at least every five years a gaming 

licensee,  whose parent or holding company is not publicly traded, shall rotate the lead 
(or coordinating) audit partner having primary responsibility for the audit, and the audit 
partner responsible for reviewing the audit.  For a gaming licensee, whose parent or 
holding company is publicly traded, lead (or coordinating) audit partner rotation shall 
comply with the requirements of federal law, including the requirements of the United 
States Securities and Exchange Commission. 
    

(3) In the event the annual audited financial statements differ from financial statements 
maintained by the gaming licensee throughout the year, the gaming licensee shall 
provide a summary of these differences as part of the annual audit. 

 
(4) The annual audit and associated statements required in accordance with 205 CMR 

139.07(1) shall be filed with the commission within 3 months following the end of the 
quarter following the end of the gaming licensee’s fiscal year.  

 
(5) In cases where a gaming licensee’s parent or holding company is not publicly traded, 

iIn the event the gaming licensee’s independent certified public accountant shall resign 
or be removed as the gaming licensee’s principal accountant or auditor, the gaming 
licensee shall submit a written report to the commission within 20 days of such 
resignation or removal, signed by its Chief Financial Officer and Chair of its Audit 
Committee, outlining the cause or nature of the resignation or removal, stating whether 
the resignation or removal was related to material differences between the parties as to 
financial statement presentation issues, disclosures, or the adequacy of the gaming 
licensee’s system of internal accounting control and, if so, a complete and detailed 
description of the differences for consideration by the commission.  The gaming 
licensee shall submit as an exhibit to this report a letter from the former independent 
certified public accountant stating whether he or she agrees with the statements made 
by the gaming licensee in the report submitted to the commission.  In cases where a 
gaming licensee’s parent or holding company is publicly traded, the gaming licensee 
shall file with the commission copies of such information and documents as are 
required to be filed with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission upon 
the resignation or removal of the publicly traded parent company’s independent 
certified public accountant. 



 

8 

 
(6) To the extent possible, any adjustments resulting from the annual audit required in 

accordance with 205 CMR 139.07 shall be recorded in the accounting records of the year 
to which the adjustment relates.  In the event the adjustments were not reflected in the 
gaming licensee’s quarterly report for the fourth quarter and the commission concludes 
the adjustments are significant, a revised quarterly report for the fourth quarter may be 
required from the gaming licensee.  The revised filing shall be due within 30 calendar 
days after notification to the gaming licensee, unless an extension is granted by the 
commission.  

 
139.08: Audit of gaming licensee operations by commission  
 
In accordance with M.G.L. c.23K, §65 the commission shall audit on an annual basis, and at 
other times the commission, or the IEB, determines necessary the accounts, programs, activities, 
and functions of a gaming licensee and/or any aspect of the gaming establishment and 
compliance with any provision of the gaming licensee’s system of internal controls approved in 
accordance with 205 CMR 138.02. To conduct the audit, authorized officers and employees of 
the commission shall be given access by the gaming licensee to such accounts at reasonable 
times and may require the production of books, documents, vouchers and other records relating 
to any matter within the scope of the audit and as otherwise provided in accordance with 205 
CMR 142: Regulatory Monitoring and Inspections; provided however, that a gaming licensee’s 
tax returns will not be audited by the commission.  All audits shall be conducted in accordance 
with generally accepted auditing standards established by the American Institute of Certified 
Public Accountants and the standards established by the Public Company Accounting Oversight 
Board.  In any audit report of the accounts, funds, programs, activities and functions of a gaming 
licensee issued by the commission containing adverse or critical audit results, the commission 
may require a response, in writing, to the audit results. Such a response shall be forwarded to the 
commission within 15 days of notification by the commission. Where possible, efforts will be 
made not to audit areas that were the subject of, and satisfactorily addressed in, the annual audit 
required in accordance with 205 CMR 139.07. 
 
Prior to submitting the requisite report required in accordance with M.G.L. c.23K, §65 to the 
clerks of the house of representatives and the senate, the gaming licensee shall be offered an 
opportunity to review the commission’s report and make any requests allowed in accordance 
with 205 CMR 139.02.  The commission may modify the information contained in the report to 
address the concern, but shall not adjust the findings of the audit.   

 
139.09:  Capital expenditure plan 

 

A gaming licensee shall annually make, or cause to be made, capital expenditures to its gaming 
establishment in a minimum aggregate amount equal to 3.5 per cent of the net annual gaming 
revenues derived from the gaming establishment; provided, however, that a gaming licensee may 
make capital expenditures in an amount less than 3.5 per cent per year as part of a multi-year 
capital expenditure plan approved by the commission.  For purposes of 205 CMR 139.09, net 
gaming revenue means gross gaming revenue as calculated in accordance with 205 CMR 140.02 
minus taxes remitted to the commonwealth in accordance with 205 CMR 140.03.  If the gaming 



 

9 

licensee intends to make capital expenditures as part of a multi-year capital plan, the plan shall 
be submitted to the commission for approval at least 3 months prior to the end of the first fiscal 
year included in the multi-year plan.  A multi-year capital plan must, at a minimum, provide for 
the establishment of, and annual contribution to, a capital reserve account.  Over the term of the 
plan, the total expenditures shall equal or exceed 3.5 per cent of the net annual gaming revenues 
derived from the gaming establishment during the covered term of years unless good cause is 
shown to the contrary.     

 
REGULATORY AUTHORITY 
 
 205 CMR 139: M.G.L. c. 23K, §§4(28), 4(37), 21(a)(4), 5 



 
♠     825 Berkshire Boulevard     ♥     Wyomissing, PA 19610     ♣     610.373.2400    ♦ 

 

 
PENN  NATIONAL  
G A M I N G,  I N C. 
 
 

 
June 5, 2015 
 
Mr. Rick Day 
Executive Director 
Massachusetts Gaming Commission 
84 State Street, 10th Floor 
Boston, MA 02109 
 

RE: Comments on Draft Rules 139- Continuing Disclosure and Reporting 
Obligations of Gaming Licensees 

 
Dear Executive Director Day: 
 
We have reviewed the Massachusetts Gaming Commission’s latest draft regulations concerning 
Continuing Disclosure and Reporting Obligations of Gaming Licensees (205 CMR 139). Based 
on this review, our primary concern is the confidentiality of the records required to be produced.  
Much of the information required to be provided will contain very sensitive information not 
typically disclosed by publicly traded companies. If such information were to be disclosed, we 
believe it would offer valuable intelligence to our competitors, contain proprietary business 
information/methods or involve confidential information relating to our customer base for which 
such customers have a reasonable expectation of privacy. 
 
General:  The regulation specifically uses the terms “gaming licensee” and “gaming licensee and 
its holding companies” in different places and context.  We are interpreting “gaming licensee” to 
be referring to Plainville Gaming and Redevelopment, LLC d/b/a Plainridge Park Casino 
(hereinafter PPC) whereas the term “holding companies” would be referring to PPC’s parent 
entities, including Penn National Gaming, Inc.(“Penn”). 
 
139.01:  Records regarding company ownership 
In general this regulation only requires that a licensee maintain corporate documents and records 
which in most cases it does.  The only concerns we have are: 
(3)  Current list of equity owners.  W e do not  typically maintain an updated list of all equity 

owners in Penn itself.  Obtaining such a list is expensive and would be out-of-date as soon as 
we receive it.  We do compile a quarterly list of all owners of Penn stock of 5% and over 
because we consider that level of ownership as material and such owners are required to file 
a public report with the SEC when they reach that level.  We would suggest that the language 
be changed to only require this information for ownership levels of 5% or more. 

  

 



 
♠     825 Berkshire Boulevard     ♥     Wyomissing, PA 19610     ♣     610.373.2400    ♦ 

 

139.02 Accounting system  
(2) Requires licensee’s to submit a full chart of accounts for approval. The confidentiality of any 

chart of accounts submitted is our main concern as this is proprietary business information 
and its public release may provide nefarious individuals valuable information useful in any 
attempt to initiate or perpetuate an accounting fraud. 

In general, we maintain that detailed information about a l icensee’s accounting system 
constitutes a proprietary business record which would be useful for third parties to interfere with 
or undermine a licensees’ accounting controls.  
 
139.03: This regulation requires annual filings with the Commission of various information.   
Again, in most cases, the information can be provided but our primary concern is confidentiality 
as more fully discussed below: 
 1a: Benefits and salaries: We can provide the requested information. We would expect that 

detailed or individualized information on be nefits and salaries would remain 
confidential as this information, if made public, would provide valuable information for 
competing casino companies (and other businesses) useful for recruitment of our 
employees by those outside firms, as well as create significant issues among our 
employees.  We would not object to the public release of bulk information of the total 
value of annual wages and benefits paid by the property provided this information is 
not broken out by department, position or individual employee. 

 
1b: Requires an annual report on amounts spent with M/W/V business enterprises.  We do 

not object to this requirement.  W e maintain however, that the public release of the 
details of such information provided (which businesses were paid what, and for what 
product or service) are proprietary business records useful to competitors and should 
not be publicly released.  We do not  object to release of aggregated annual spending 
with M/W/VBEs (i.e. one figure for PPC’s MBE spending, another for WBE, etc.) but 
would object to the release of the details of such spending on confidentiality grounds.  

 
 1d: Requires aggregate demographic information with respect to the gaming licensee’s 

customers.  Customer data is among the most sensitive and important data we maintain. We 
have two concerns here: 

  1. The regulation uses the word “aggregate”.  We do not object to provide aggregate 
patron demographic information to the Commission provided the information is not 
identifiable to individual customers. 

  2. We would not object to a public release of aggregate data that aggregates 
demographic information from all operating casino customers on a s tatewide basis. 
However, release of this information on a property basis could provide valuable 
competitive information to competing casino companies that may allow them to 
develop marketing strategies that would hurt the licensee’s competitive position. 

 
We also note that the information provided would only include rated players and thus would 
not give a wholly accurate portrayal of the demographics of all Massachusetts players. 

 
 1f: Requires production of a quarterly report of all comps.  We have several concerns here: 
  1. This is highly sensitive marketing and customer information that would be very 

useful to competing casino operators to undercut the Licensee’s own marketing 



 
♠     825 Berkshire Boulevard     ♥     Wyomissing, PA 19610     ♣     610.373.2400    ♦ 

 

programs.  As such, any data provided should be considered a proprietary business 
record and should not be publicly released either in aggregate or b y individual 
property. 

  2. Our interpretation of the first part of this section (comps of under $2,000) is that we 
would only need to provide aggregate comp information (i.e. total value of comps, 
total number of people who received comps) and not data on individual comps or on 
the individuals who received those comps.  Information more detailed than that (e.g. 
who received each comp), is proprietary company information that, if disclosed, 
would be useful to competitors to undermine the licensee’s marketing activity.  
Additionally customers receiving comps have a legitimate expectation of privacy that 
their comp activity will remain private. 

  3. The knowledge by patrons that any comps they receive of over $2,000 m ust be 
reported to the MGC may have a chilling effect on the willingness of such customers 
to play in our casino.  More importantly, any such information provided must be 
protected from public release as patrons have an expectation of privacy in such 
matters.  A dditionally, this information would provide valuable competitive 
information to competing casino companies that may allow them to develop 
marketing strategies that would hurt the licensee’s competitive position. 

 
 1g: We do not object to this provision in general but do believe reporting on amounts played 

and lost by zip code, if released on an individual property basis, will provide useful 
competitive information to competing casino companies that may allow them to develop 
marketing strategies that would hurt the licensee’s competitive position.  Such release may 
allow competitors to target their marketing at those zip codes that provide the licensees’ 
with their greatest revenue. 

 
 1i: Requires the annual production of a disbursement report.  We have no objection to the 

requirement to provide this report; however, we believe requiring such a report twice a 
month (per 138.06 (2)) is excessive and should be required to only be produced monthly.  
The reports will provide a detailed picture as to where the licensee is spending money 
which is a proprietary business record that should be protected from public disclosure. 

 
 1j: Requires the annual production of detailed counter check information.  The information 

required to be provided is highly sensitive as it will contain detailed financial information 
on our patron’s credit activity including bank account information.  Therefore it should be 
protected from public disclosures as people have an expectation that such sensitive 
financial information will be protected from public disclosure. 

 
 1k: Requires the production of “customer tracking data collected or generated by loyalty 

programs, player tracking software, player card systems, online gambling transactions or 
any other information system”.  This customer information is highly sensitive.  We have 
two concerns here: 

  1. This is highly sensitive marketing and customer information that would be very 
useful to competing casino operators to undercut the Licensee’s own marketing 
programs.  As such, any data provided should be considered a proprietary business 
record and should not be publicly released either in aggregate or b y individual 
properties. 

 



 
♠     825 Berkshire Boulevard     ♥     Wyomissing, PA 19610     ♣     610.373.2400    ♦ 

 

  2. The knowledge by patrons that all data collected through the player tracking system 
will be given to authorities in the Commonwealth (even if anonymized) may have a 
chilling effect on t he willingness of such customers to play in our c asino.  M ore 
importantly, any such information provided must be protected from public release as 
patrons have an expectation of privacy in such matters.   

  
 1l: Requires the production of daily tax remittance information: The Licensee has no objection 

to providing this information.  D aily tax remittance information should, however, be 
protected from public release because, through a simple calculation, it would allow 
competitors to determine property gaming revenue on a  daily basis.  If publicly released, 
this information would allow competing casino companies to determine the impact of 
individual property promotions and special events on t he property’s casino play.  T his 
information would then allow those competitor’s to emulate those same promotions to the 
detriment of the casino’s own profitability. We have no obj ection to releasing such 
information on a month or quarterly basis preferably aggregated with all other in-state 
casino remittances. 

 
 1m: This regulation references 205 CMR 140.04 which requires monthly and annual reports of 

gross gaming revenue and tax remittance but does not require quarterly reports, while Item 
M of 139.01 re ferences quarterly and annual gross gaming revenue reports. It appears 
therefore, that there is a discrepancy between annual and quarterly reports.  We have no 
objection to providing either monthly or quarterly reports of gross gaming revenue and tax 
remittances.  From the regulation, it is unclear whether this report requires the data to be 
broken down by individual days with a monthly sum at the bottom or whether it just 
requires the data be presented as monthly totals.  If individual daily information is required 
we reiterate the comments made in Item l above. As far as monthly or quarterly gross 
gaming revenue and tax remittance data, we have no objection to the public release of such 
information preferably aggregated with all other in-state casino remittances. 

 
139.04 Monthly and quarterly financial statements 
1. Requires each licensee to submit monthly internal financial statements.  We do maintain 

unaudited monthly property financial statements and have no objection to this requirement. We 
note however, that Penn is a publicly traded company that does not publicly report individual 
property results in its financial statements.  As such, we believe that property financial statements 
are proprietary business record and should be protected from public disclosure.  Release of such 
information would be useful to competitors to the detriment of the licensee, may necessitate 
burdensome SEC disclosure statements and would be beyond what is normally disclosed by a 
multi-jurisdictional publicly traded company. 

 
2.   Requires each licensee to submit quarterly internal financial statements.  Our concerns are the 

same as discussed in Item 1 above 
 
3. We have no objection to providing annual budgeting documents, provided that these documents 

are protected from public disclosure.  They will contain proprietary business plans and non-
public inside information that if publicly released, could provide irreparable harm to the 
company.  We believe the necessity to provide monthly budget updates is excessive as we 
believe that monthly budget details will be of little use to the Commonwealth and feel that the 
requirement should be eliminated or changed to require only quarterly updates. 



 
♠     825 Berkshire Boulevard     ♥     Wyomissing, PA 19610     ♣     610.373.2400    ♦ 

 

 
139.05 Financial stability filings by a gaming licensee 
1: Requires the filing of a quarterly statement that: 

(a): States that the licensee has an adequate bankroll to pay winning wagers.  We have no 
objection to this provision, however; the regulation goes on to set a rigid definition of a 
minimum bankroll, requiring it to be equal or greater than the bankroll in place the 
prior year.  We do not  see the need for the Commission to set a minimum bankroll.  
The minimum bankroll needed by a casino will vary over time based on m arket 
conditions, new technology and special events.  Some examples: 
• A new competitor entering the market will tend to reduce business levels so the 

casino’s bankroll needs are lower. 
• Holding a large promotion may require a casino to increase its bankroll 
• New technology, (e.g. TITO tickets) will tend to reduce the amount of cash used 

in a casino so the bankroll can be lower. 
For these reasons we believe the definition of the minimum bankroll is not necessary 
or practical and should be removed from the regulation. 
 

 (b): Attestation by licensee that it will have a positive EBITDA.  W e are confident our 
operations will have positive EBITDA but it is possible that this will not always be the 
case.  There could be a major force majeure event (e.g. serious tornado damage or a 
fire) that could cause a disruption of casino operations that could lead to negative 
EBITDA.  Such events cannot be predicted so the attestation would strictly be an 
opinion based on w hat is known at the time and would not be a guarantee.  T his 
comment also applies to items (c), (d), and (e) in this section. 

 
2. Requires the submission of projected financial statements for the following year of operation.  

We have no objection to providing projected financial statements provided such documents are 
protected from public disclosure.  T hey will contain proprietary business projections and non-
public inside information that, if publicly released, could provide irreparable harm to the 
company.  Release of such information would be useful to competitors to the detriment of the 
licensee, may necessitate burdensome SEC disclosure statements and would be beyond what is 
normally disclosed by a multi-jurisdictional publicly traded company. 

 
3. Annual statement regarding compliance with 139.05(1)(a)-(e).  We have no obj ection to 

providing this information.  T his information requires an “analysis” of this compliance.  Such 
analysis is likely to contain proprietary non-public inside information that if publicly released, 
could provide irreparable harm to the company.  We therefore believe any information provided 
should be protected from public disclosure. 

 
4. We have no obj ection to providing the Commission Compliance Certificates related to the 

company’s debt.  W e do maintain however, that these compliance certificates are likely to 
contain non-public proprietary business information that if released may necessitate burdensome 
SEC disclosure statements and would be beyond what is normally disclosed by a publicly traded 
company. 

 
5. Requires licensees to file with the Commission essential details of any loans, covenants, 

borrowings, installment contracts, guarantees, leases, capital contributions, or any other debt no 



 
♠     825 Berkshire Boulevard     ♥     Wyomissing, PA 19610     ♣     610.373.2400    ♦ 

 

later than 10 days after the end of the month in which the transaction or event occurs.    
 We suggest that the wording of this regulation is too broad.  We believe what the Commission is 

looking for is details of l arge and significant financing transactions but the regulation also 
includes “installment contracts”, “leases” and “any other debt”.  Casinos frequently enter into 
small lease or installment contracts that are not material project financing transactions.  Examples 
of such transactions may include: 
• a yearly lease for a slot machine, 
• the purchase of communications equipment on installment (e.g. no interest for 12 equal 

monthly payments) that the supplier offers as an incentive to buy their equipment over 
their competitors 

• A 5 year lease on a security van. 
  
 We would suggest an adjustment to the regulation to include a materiality provision such as: 
 whose annual value exceeds $250,000.  Additionally, any information provided, should be 

protected from public disclosure as some of the information will be proprietary business records. 
The release of such records could be useful to competitors to the detriment of the licensee or the 
issuer, who may offer different terms to different customers and would not want that information 
to be known to its competitors. 

 
6. Notice of default or potential default along with any plans to address or cure such default: 

We see no problem in complying with this requirement.  We do however, assert that any such 
notice and cure plans should not be publicly disclosed (particularly any cure plans) beyond what 
is required by SEC rules and regulations.  T his information will likely contain commercially 
sensitive and proprietary business records that would allow competitors or financial speculators 
to undermine the licensee’s cure plans, expose the company to litigation risk and undermine its 
ability to raise capital.    

 
139.06: Annual Audit and other reports 
We have no obj ection to providing this information; however, we note that Penn does not report 
individual property results in its financial statements.  T herefore, the PPC statements that will be 
provided should remain confidential.  We believe that property financial statements are proprietary 
business record and should be protected from public disclosure.  Release of such information would 
be useful to competitors to the detriment of the licensee, may necessitate burdensome SEC disclosure 
statements and would be beyond what is normally disclosed by a multi-jurisdictional publicly traded 
company. 
 
139.07 Tax Filings 
We have no objection to providing this information.  While some tax information is included in 
Penn’s SEC filings, its tax returns are not public documents and should be protected from public 
release.  
 
139.08: Minutes of meetings of board and committees 
These documents are highly confidential.  They contain non-public information on future business 
plans (acquisitions, divestments) and memorialize frank discussion from Board members and staff on 
major company matters that may include: sensitive financial information, personnel matters related to 
senior executives, compensation discussions, internal investigations and many other highly 
confidential matters.  The production or release of such information would increase litigation risk, 



 
♠     825 Berkshire Boulevard     ♥     Wyomissing, PA 19610     ♣     610.373.2400    ♦ 

 

may lead to SEC disclosure issues and would be useful to competitors and financial speculators to 
harm the business prospects of the company.  The knowledge by Board members that such 
documents could be under public scrutiny would have a chilling effect on a company board 
member’s ability to frankly discuss company matters in general.  Due to the size of the gaming 
companies operating in Massachusetts, the vast majority of the discussions conducted by the Board 
would not be directly related to each company’s Massachusetts operation but would concern matters 
of many other properties and business prospects. 
 
We are so concerned about the confidentiality and potential harm that the release of these documents 
could do to the legitimate business interest of the company that we do not believe they should ever be 
in the physical possession of the MGC.  We would welcome further discussion with Commission 
staff on the best way to protect the confidentiality of these critical documents while still providing 
any needed Board related information to the Commission’s representatives should the need arise.  
 
139.12: Audit of gaming licensee operations by Commission  
We have no objection to this provision.  We assert that any audit findings documented should not 
be subject to public disclosure as they will likely contain non-public business information on 
company procedures and business practices and could include personal information on customers 
and property staff.  
   
139.13: Capital expenditure plan 
The specific information on what the capital spending plan will include, or the actual amounts being 
“saved-up” for a future capital project, should be protected from public disclosure.  Such plans would 
provide valuable information on the licensees future business plans to the licensee’s competitors so 
that those competitors could take action to counter those expansion plans to the detriment of the 
licensee. 
 
We respectfully request the Massachusetts Gaming Commission’s consideration of our 
comments.  If you or your staff have any questions or would like to discuss further, feel free to 
contact me or Frank Donaghue directly.  
 

Sincerely,  
 

_Jim Baldacci________________________ 
Jim Baldacci 
Deputy Chief Compliance Officer 



 
♠     825 Berkshire Boulevard     ♥     Wyomissing, PA 19610     ♣     610.373.2400    ♦ 

 

 
PENN  NATIONAL  
G A M I N G,  I N C. 
 
 

 
July 16, 2015 
 
Mr. Rick Day 
Executive Director 
Massachusetts Gaming Commission 
84 State Street, 10th Floor 
Boston, MA 02109 
 

RE: Comments on Draft Rules 139 Continuing Disclosure and Reporting 
Obligations of Gaming Licensees 

 
Dear Executive Director Day: 
 
We have reviewed the Massachusetts Gaming Commission’s latest draft regulations concerning 
Continuing Disclosure and Reporting Obligations of Gaming Licensees (205 CMR 139) that we 
received on J une 30, 2015. The addition of Section 139.02 a lleviates much of what was and 
remains our primary concern regarding this section, namely the confidentiality of the information 
required to be provided.  We appreciate this addition as well as other changes made related to the 
comments previously provided to the Commission by Penn and other Massachusetts licensees.  
 
For those sections that were not modified, we have already expressed our concerns and will not 
repeat them here.  We do however, offer the following two additional comments: 
 
139.04 Reports and information to be filed with the commission 
(6): Indicates that the commission shall make the monthly slot machine payback statistics 
publicly available on i ts official website. We have no obj ection provided such information is 
presented in aggregate and not by individual slot machine. 
 
139.05 - Reports and information to be compiled and maintained by the gaming licensee 
1-e: We understand that this regulation was changed from requiring disclosure of all equity 
holders and bond holders to only requiring equity/bond holders of 2% or more.  As previously 
discussed, we do compile a quarterly list of all owners of Penn stock of 5% and over because we 
(and most gaming commissions) consider that level of ownership as material and such owners 
are required to file a public report with the SEC when they reach that level.  While increasing the 
level to 2% is better than requiring 100% disclosure (it will be a much smaller list), we still 
suggest that the language be changed to only require this information for ownership levels of 5% 
or more as obtaining a list of all equity holders is expensive and would be out-of-date as soon as 
we receive it. In virtually every jurisdiction we operate in, disclosure is required at 5% or higher.  
One jurisdiction requires disclosure at less than 5% but it only includes institutional investors 
and not individual investors.  O wnership by institutional investors is much easier to get than 

 



 
♠     825 Berkshire Boulevard     ♥     Wyomissing, PA 19610     ♣     610.373.2400    ♦ 

 

ownership by all investors. 
 
We appreciate the ability to comment on rules in their draft states and are grateful that the 
Commission and its staff have shown that they seriously consider such comments throughout the 
rule promulgation process. 
 
If you or your staff have any questions or would like to discuss further, feel free to contact me 
directly.  
 

Sincerely,  
 

_Jim Baldacci________________________ 
Jim Baldacci 
Deputy Chief Compliance Officer 



 

 

 

   TO: Chairman Crosby, Commissioners Cameron, McHugh, Stebbins and Zuniga  

FROM: 
 
Mark Vander Linden, Director of Research and Responsible Gaming  

DATE: July 23, 2015  

RE: Status Update on Play Management 

 

 

Background 
A key element of the Massachusetts Gaming Commission (MGC) Responsible Gaming Framework is 
Strategy 2: Support Informed Player Choice, which identifies and describes measures to support players’ 
efforts to responsibly manage their gambling.  Section 2.2, titled Play Information and Management 
systems, describes specific tools to implement this strategy, including the ability for players to set limits on 
the amount spent gambling.  

In January 2015, the MGC voted to adopt a Play Management system that included limit setting tools on a 
test basis at Plainridge Park Casino.  Since that time, stakeholders including: Penn National Gaming, Bally 
Technology, Cambridge Health Alliance, Division on Addiction and the Massachusetts Gaming Commission 
have made significant progress to establish a Play Management for electronic gaming machines (EGM) in 
Massachusetts.     

Materials completed to date 

• Play Management standards document – This document provides the functional requirements for 
Play Management. 
 

• Evaluation services procurement – The Cambridge Health Alliance, Division on Addiction was 
selected in April 2015 to conduct evaluation services for key responsible gaming initiatives. 
 

• Evaluation protocol – This document defines the plan that will be used to evaluate utilization 
(uptake) and effectiveness of Play Management over the study period.   
 

• Play Management kiosks – Two kiosks “wrapped” with GameSense branding have been purchased 
and are at Plainridge Park Casino.  Until Play Management becomes operational, only one of the 
kiosks is being used in the GameSense Info Center to educate patrons of responsible gaming tools. 
 

• GLI certification/attestation of Bally Pre-commitment – The pre-commitment module for ACSC has 
received “preliminary “approval for installation (but not activation) at Plainridge Park Casino.   
 

Materials to be completed 
• Framework for EGM content/messaging and graphic standards –This document defines the graphic 

and message content, flow of enrollment and budget setting, and un-enrollment from Play 
Management.  (significantly complete)  



 

 
 

• Framework for kiosk content/messaging and graphic standards - Defines the graphic and message 
content, flow of enrollment and budget setting, and un-enrollment from Play Management.  
(significantly complete)   
 

• Casino Management System development to align existing Bally pre-commitment standards with 
MA standards – This work includes all changes and additions to the Bally pre-commitment software 
to comply with MA Play Management standards.  (significantly complete) 
 

• Testing and approval by stakeholders- When all the changes to the software have been made, key 
stakeholders will test the functionality of Play Management.   
 

• GLI certification/attestation of MA Play Management system - Once Play Management has been 
approved by stakeholders; it will be tested again by GLI for final approval.   
 

• User training guide- This document will be the basis for training of all staff that who interacts with 
patrons using Play Management.  The exact audience has not been determined. 
 

• Training of frontline and other select staff- Once the training guide is complete, select staff will be 
trained on how to use and assist patrons with Play Management.   
 

• Go live at Plainridge Park Casino 

Estimated timeline for completion 
Based on the work to be done, I expect Play Management will be complete and ready for implementation 
at Plainridge Park Casino in September – October 2015.   
 

 

 

 

 
    

 

 
 



 
 

No Documents 



 
 

No Documents 



 
 

No Documents 


	07-23-15 Commissioners' Packet - TIMED
	0) Cover Page
	07-23-15 - Commission Meeting Agenda - TIMED2
	2a) 2015.07.09 - Minutes - Draft
	3a) Suffolk Request for Racing Days Aug.-Sept.-Oct. 2015 Final
	3a1) All Suffolk Racing Comments in order rec'd
	4a) KG letter 7.16.15
	5a) No Documents
	5b) Quarterly Report period ending 6-30-15
	_Cover Page
	_Table of Contents
	APPENDIX 1 - cover
	APPENDIX 2 - cover
	APPENDIX 3 - cover
	APPENDIX 4 - cover
	Appendix 4 - Photo Update 6-30-2015
	APPENDIX 5 - cover
	Appendix 6 - Contract Spreadsheet Update 6-30-15
	Sheet1

	APPENDIX 7 - cover
	APPENDIX 8 - cover
	Appendix 8 - Report No 60 WE 6 21 15
	Appendix 8 - Report z
	APPENDIX 9 - Construction Phase
	Appendix 9 - Construction Report - 5-31-15
	APPENDIX 9 - Design Phase
	APPENDIX 10 - Cover
	Appendix 10 - Permits Status 06-30-2015
	APPENDIX 11
	APPENDIX 12 - cover
	Appendix 12 - Report as of June 30 2015

	7a) 205 CMR 139 ASBIS
	7a) Disclosure and Reporting Regs
	139.02:  Non-disclosure agreements
	139.03:  Fiscal year
	139.04:  Reports and information to be filed with the commission
	139.05:  Reports and information to be compiled and maintained by the gaming licensee
	U139.04:  Reports and information to be filed with the commission
	The following reports and information shall be filed with the commission, or its designee, in the manner and time provided:
	(5) Reports prescribed in accordance with 205 CMR 138.05(2) relative to registered and licensed employees;
	(6) Daily, monthly, and annual gross gaming revenue remittance and reconciliation reports required in accordance with 205 CMR 140.00: Gross Gaming Revenue Tax Remittance and Reporting.  Monthly gross gaming revenue reports shall include statistics rel...
	(7) Promptly upon discovery, the gaming licensee shall notify the commission’s on-site gaming agent and/or member of the Gaming Enforcement Unit assigned to the gaming establishment of any violation, or suspected violation, of M.G.L. c. 23K, 205 CMR, ...
	(8) By the 10PthP day of each month, an underage person report with the IEB containing the information required in accordance with 205 CMR 150.05: Reporting Requirements Related to Minors and Underage Persons.
	(9) A gaming licensee shall promptly notify the commission’s on-site gaming agent and/or member of the Gaming Enforcement Unit assigned to the gaming establishment, if an individual on the voluntary self-exclusion list established in accordance with 2...
	(10) Any declared event of default related to any debt obligation maintained by the gaming licensee, affiliate, holding company or intermediary company thereof shall be immediately reported to the commission, in writing, along with any plans to addres...
	(12) If the gaming licensee elects to establish a capital expenditure plan in accordance with M.G.L. c.23K, §21(a)(4) and 205 CMR 139.09, in lieu of making annual improvements to its gaming establishment, such plan shall be submitted to the commission...
	(13) Documents and other materials required to be submitted in accordance with the terms of the gaming licensee’s gaming license.
	(14) A gaming licensee’s system of internal controls approved in accordance with 205 CMR 138.02, amendments thereto, and any documents or information required to be submitted in accordance with the approved system of internal controls.
	U139.05:  Reports and information to be compiled and maintained by the gaming licensee
	The following reports and information shall be compiled and maintained by the gaming licensee, or where applicable the gaming licensee’s holding company, intermediary company, qualifying subsidiary, or entity qualifier thereof, in the manner provided ...
	(1) Up to date records regarding the business structure, capital structure, and controlling interest of the gaming licensee, where applicable, and the gaming licensee’s holding company, intermediary company, qualifying subsidiary, or entity qualifier ...
	(a) Certified copies of incorporation and formation documents and any amendments thereto;
	(b) By-laws, shareholders agreements, governing and/or operating agreements or documents, partnership agreement, intercompany transactions, joint venture agreements, merger and acquisition agreements, and other relevant corporate documents.;
	(c) Current listing of officers, directors, members, partners;
	(d) Minutes of all meetings of shareholders;
	(e) Detailed records regarding all record and beneficial owners of any class of non-publicly traded securities, including both equity and debt securities, issued by the gaming licensee, its holding company, intermediary company, qualifying subsidiary ...
	(f) Detailed records regarding all record and beneficial owners of 5% or more of any class of publicly traded securities, including both equity and debt securities, issued by the gaming licensee, its holding company, intermediary company, qualifying s...
	(g) Detailed records regarding distributions to equity holders holding 5% or more of the entity;
	(h) Detailed records regarding all remuneration paid to officers, directors, partners and members;
	(i) (for the gaming licensee only) Detailed records regarding all capital contributions;
	(j) (for the gaming licensee only) Detailed records regarding any equity transfers;

	7a) MGM Springfield - Comment on Revsied 205 CMR 139 (1)
	7a) MGM Springfield - redline of comments on Revsied 205 CMR 139 (2)
	7a) PNG - first comment on 205 CMR 139.00 Continuing Disclosure and Reporting
	PENN  NATIONAL

	7a) PNG- second public comment on 139 update
	PENN  NATIONAL
	139.04 Reports and information to be filed with the commission
	(6): Indicates that the commission shall make the monthly slot machine payback statistics publicly available on its official website. We have no objection provided such information is presented in aggregate and not by individual slot machine.

	6a) Play management update memo final

	Part 2 - 07-23-15 Commissioners' Packet - TIMED



